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MORAINE
PARK

TECHNICAL COLLEGE Sheila Ruhland, Ph.D., President

November 27, 2013

To the Citizens and Board of Directors
of the Moraine Park Technical College District

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Moraine Park Technical College District (hereafter
referred to as “College’, “MPTC” or "District") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, is hereby
submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the District. To the best of our knowledge, the enclosed
data is accurate and reported in @ manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the District. We have included all disclosures necessary to enable you to understand the
District's financial activities.

The District is required to undergo an annual single audit to conform to the provisions of U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations and the State Single Audit Guidelines issued by the State of Wisconsin. Information
related to this single audit, including the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state awards,
schedule of findings and questioned costs and independent auditors’ reports on the internal control and
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants is included in the single audit
section of this report.

This annual report includes all financial activity of the District in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). This annual report is consistent with legal reporting requirements of the
State of Wisconsin. Besides meeting legal reporting requirements, the annual report is intended to
present a summary of the significant District financial data in a format which meets the varying needs of
District citizens, students, employees, taxpayers, financial institutions, bond rating agencies and
intergovernmental agencies, including the Wisconsin Technical College System. We believe this
presentation will provide better information to the user of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR).

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
District's MD&A can be found immediately following the independent auditors’ report.

REPORTING ENTITY

The Moraine Park Technical College District (also known as Moraine Park Technical College) is one of 16
districts in the Wisconsin Technical College System. This system began as the first statewide
occupational school system in the United States as the result of state legislation passed in 1911. The
system continues to receive strong support from organized labor, agriculture and business and industry.

Since 1911, Moraine Park Technical College has been helping people acquire the knowledge and skills
necessary to prepare them for a rewarding future in the world of business, industry and service
occupations. Our campuses in Fond du Lac, West Bend and Beaver Dam have well-equipped, state-of-
the-art educational and computer laboratories, highly experienced instructors and a curricula which is
continually updated with assistance from MPTC's advisory committees. Our mission is to ensure that our
students will acquire the knowledge and skills to become and remain employable in today's competitive
job market.
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The main campus and District administrative offices are located on the northeast side of Fond du Lac,
while two branch campuses are located in West Bend and Beaver Dam. In addition, MPTC leases
facilities for regional centers in Hartford and Ripon.

The District offers a variety of associate of applied science degree programs, two-year and one-year
vocational diploma programs, apprenticeship programs, technical certificates and other adult education
services. Students who graduated in 2012 from the College’s associate degree or technical diploma
programs experienced an 88% job placement rate.

The College is accredited by The Higher Learning Commission and a member of the North Central
Association. Programs and courses are approved by the Wisconsin Technical College System Board and
endorsed by the Veterans Administration, the American Association of Community Colleges and the

Wisconsin Board of Nursing and Division of Nurses. Other selected programs are accredited by the
National League of Nursing and other professional organizations.

VISION, MISSION, VALUE STATEMENTS AND 2011-16 GOAL STATEMENTS
Vision

Moraine Park Technical College will be a respected and preferred educational leader.
Mission

Innovative education for an evolving workforce and community.

Value Statements

Collaboration — We value collaboration and communication among students, staff and community
partners to strengthen our District and communities.

Lifelong Learning ~ We value learning as a lifelong journey in the pursuit of personal and professional
growth.

Innovation — We value innovation and creativity to remain a leader in global technical education.
Integrity — We value fair, honest, respectful and ethical behaviors.

Inclusiveness — We value inclusiveness and respect for all, providing accessible education to diverse
learners. We believe that team work is critical, that each member is important to accomplishing our

mission.

Student-Centered - We vaiue a responsive and supportive environment providing the rigor and relevance
necessary to advance student learning, development and student.

Accountability — We value individual and shared responsibility for our actions and ensuring the future of
Moraine Park, both academically and fiscally.

Continuous Improvement — We value informed decisions which promote sustainability, continuous
improvement and effective and efficient use of resources.

2011-16 Goal Statements

Achieve Performance Excellence
Promote an environment of continuous improvement and sustainability.

Enhance Student Success
Promote a learning environment dedicated to student achievement.

Strengthen Community Connections
Seek and develop opportunities that positively impact our communities.
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2012-13 STRATEGIC PLAN — COLLEGE GOALS AND OUTCOMES

MPTC is an organization where accomplishments flow from its vision and outcome-based strategic plan.
Highlights from 2012-13 include the following:

Goal 1: Achieve Performance Excellence

Implemented a print management accountability solution for staff resulting in a 30% reduction of
paper usage and a reduction of 36 printers throughout the District

Completed the Student Exchange Visitor Program for admission of international students.
Recognized as a “Military Friendly School” for the 4w year in a row.
Developed a Crisis Communication Plan.

Advocacy leader for technical college initiatives through positive partnerships with district
legislators and the District Boards Association.

Designed College branding to create awareness of market mindshare.
Developed an Employee Handbook.

Received and managed two manufacturing industry sector grants.

Developed employee recruitment branding, and enhanced diversity recruitment.

Enhance Student Success

Goal 3:

Launched the College 101 student success course.

Implemented on-line admission application in January 2013.

Implemented Early Alert System. Alerts are directly sent to students who have behavioral issues
or are potentially going to fail their course work.

Developed a new student orientation targeted to specific program cohorts, with key message
“Just Ask.”

Implemented Behavior Intervention Team (BIT) software package which streamlines case
management and tracking of student conduct cases.

implemented Dream Keepers Grant. Assisted 51 students with emergency financial needs. Forty-
nine of the 51 registered from fall to spring with the remaining two graduating.

Developed Disability Resources Team and implemented a student orientation for students with
disabilities.

Created three new student clubs: (1) SAGA (Straight and Gay Alliance) Club, (2) SMARTS
(Super Motivated Adults Returning to School), and (3) Student Veteran's Club.

Purchased IfbyPhone software to automate calling functions related to advising and testing
appointment reminders, as well as an effective tool for notifying students of payments.

Installed web cameras in West Bend and Beaver Dam Student Service areas allowing video
calling capabilities for students to provide distance services, e.g., contact with financial aid staff.

Strengthen Community Connections

Completed capital project enhancements to include the library addition, student life remodel, and
Mercury Marine training lab in Beaver Dam; testing center in Fond du Lac; and, the building
trades remodel for carpentry, electricity and heating, ventilation and air conditioning programs at
the West Bend campus.

Successfully negotiated a lease for a new regional center in the Village of Jackson.

Completed additional phases of a multi-year Business Continuity Management program
implementation.

Participated in the Fond du Lac High School Financial Aid Night, College Goal Wisconsin, and the
Veteran's Employment and Veteran’s Benefit fairs.

Conducted “Call-Out” for military students to provide an opportunity to learn about educational
benefits, counselor resources, and other support services available to assist in the transition to
college.

Career Prep rolled out a new feature with the WI Career Pathways Website which links
employers to high school students and high school teachers by related career cluster pathways.
Conducted research to understand why students leave the district to go to other technical
colleges, and why students exit the College (first year). Developing a marketing campaign that
aims to address those issues (second year).



e Distributed 2011-12 Annual Report, to include the Moraine Park Foundation.

e Participated in WTCS Dual Credit Day at Lomira High School which recognized MPTC as a
pioneer of articulation efforts.

FACILITIES AND CAPITAL INITIATIVES

Beaver Dam Campus

The library space that was vacated in 2012 was partially remodeled to expand the Mercury Marine
training center. This center houses a national training center for Mercury Marine, the world’s leading
manufacturer of recreational marine propulsion engines. An additional classroom and expanded space
for instructional technology were also included in this remodel.

Other projects inciuded a partial roof replacement (per the rotation plan) on the cold storage building in
Beaver Dam.

Fond du Lac Campus

A portion of the Fond du Lac campus library was remodeled to accommodate a new Pearson VUE testing
center. The center will allow a new format of testing now mandated by the General Educational
Development Testing Service within the Wisconsin Technical College System by January, 2014. Also
included in this library remodel were additional group study rooms and new office spaces for library staff.

Other projects included a roof replacement in two sections of the C building and a boiler upgrade serving
the E building.

West Bend Campus

A multi-phase project began in May, 2012 to transition all building trades (i.e. construction, electricity, and
heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning) into one consolidated area at the West Bend campus with a
strong focus on sustainability. Construction was completed on Phase Il during 2012-13 and included the
remodeling of alimost 18,000 square feet related to shop upgrades, extensive iab enhancements, and
general classroom space for the building trade programs.

In May 2013, the District began construction of a 9,000 square foot addition for a multi-purpose lab to be
shared by all of the building trade programs. This building will have a partial dirt floor for hands-on-
training but be large enough to house solar panel instruction and will allow the construction of small
buildings within the facility.

Other projects included a condenser replacement in the L building with lighting and exhaust upgrades
completed in the Advanced Manufacturing Technology Center.

ACCREDITATION

The Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools accredits
Moraine Park Technical College. The College received a comprehensive evaluation under the Program
to Evaluate and Advance Quality (PEAQ) in 1994-95, but later decided the new Academic Quality
Improvement Program (AQIP) pathway for accreditation introduced in 1999 was a better match. AQIP is
structured around quality improvement principles and processes and involves a structured set of goal-
setting, networking, and accountability activities.

Since joining the Higher Learning Commission’s Academic Quality Improvement Program (AQIP) in 2001,
Moraine Park has participated in the following Accreditation activities:

e Attended three Strategy Forums (2002, 2006, 2010)
Team participated in the following events at the 2010 Strategy Forum:
e Attended multi-institution collaborative meeting focusing on AQIP lessons learned,
current action projects and category review
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e Developed the guidelines for the next Action Project
e Outlined critical criteria necessary for the coliege to consider in order to further develop
quality initiatives and integrate a culture of quality
¢ Reviewed and prioritized action items stemming from the 2009 Systems Portfolio
feedback report
» Transitioned to an innovative electronic portfolio and submitted two Systems Portfolios for
appraisal (2005, 2009, 2013)
o Hosted first Quality Checkup Site Visit in February 2007 whereby accreditation was reaffirmed
through 2014-2015
¢ Maintained accreditation status in good standing since 2001
* Continues to make progress annually on action projects that are reported to the AQIP review
team. Current action projects include:
o Implement a new Faculty Advising Model
o Develop a process for using data fo enhance decision making through Business
Intelligence
¢ Develop and implement a process to track student progress and achievement

In the coming months, college teams will continue to devote resources to improving processes identified
in recent feedback reports and will review annual update feedback for Action Projects as submitted to the
Higher Learning Commission. Additionally, the Systems Portfolio submitted in June 2013 to the Higher
Learning Commission prepares the college for its next reaffirmation cycle, with Quality Checkup Site
Visits scheduled in late 2013 and the Strategy Forum extending into 2014.

The following programs are individually accredited or approved:

Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse — State of Wisconsin Department of Regulation and Licensing
Automotive Technician — National Automotive Technicians Education Foundation
Barber/Cosmetologist/Nail Technician — State of Wisconsin Department of Regulation and Licensing
Chiropractic Technician — Wisconsin Chiropractic Examining Board

Clinical Laboratory Technician — National Accrediting Agency for Clinical Laboratory Sciences
Culinary Arts — American Culinary Federation

Heaith Information Technology — Commission on Accreditation for Health Informatics and Information
Management Education

Medical Assistant — Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Educational Programs and American
Association of Medical Assistants

Medical Transcription — Association for Healthcare Documentation Integrity

Nursing — National League for Nursing Accrediting Commission, Inc. and Wisconsin Board of Nursing
Radiography - Joint Review Committee on Education in Radiologic Technology

Respiratory Therapist — Committee of Accreditation for Respiratory Care

Surgical Technology — Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs in
Cooperation with the Accreditation Review Council on Education in Surgical Technology and
Surgical Assisting



ECONOMIC CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements and footnotes is supplemented by information
provided below on other factors which may impact financial operations of the College for this year and the
future.

State and Local Economy

The Wisconsin economy continues to grow at a moderate pace. The forecast calls for growth in terms of
jobs and income for 2013 with the economy gaining steam in 2014. Wisconsin personal income grew
2.7% in 2012 and will increase 1.9% in 2013. In addition, employment in Wisconsin is expected to show
positive growth throughout the forecast period, rising 1.1% in 2013 and 1.4% in 2014 (Wisconsin
Economic Outlook, Summer 2013).

Property values in Wisconsin continue to drop and the District experienced a drop in values totaling
2.16% for 2010, 1.83% in 2011, and a third year decrease of 3.51% for 2012. However, these declines
are less than the statewide average and below the national average for residential property. College
administration expects at least continued declines through 2013 before the property values are expected
to stabilize.

State Administration

For the 2011-13 biennial budget, Governor Scott Walker approved controversial changes to the
bargaining rights of public employees. The approved budget bili required any state and local government
employee, not under an existing union contract as of July 1, 2011, to contribute 50% of their Wisconsin
Retirement pension payment annually and also to cover premium co-pays up to 12% under the State’s
insurance plan. The bill also eliminated, for government workers, most collective bargaining rights except
for wages. Unions would be unable to seek pay increases for government workers above the inflation
rate, unless approved by a voter referendum. Under the bill, unions must also recertify annually and
employers are not allowed to collect union dues.

The impact to the Wisconsin Technical College System (WTCS) during the biennium also included the
following major items:
e A 30% cut to current general aid funding totaling $119 million annually
e A freeze in operational levies for the next two years at no more than the dollar amount levied in
2010 — an exception is allowed so that a district could capture additional levy dollars to the extent
property values increase (this language did sunset in June, 2013)

These new directives obviously create fiscal challenges in planning for 2012-13. Although the College
was able to implement the cost-saving measures for non-represented and support professionals effective
July 1, 2011, the faculty union members were under an existing contract untit June 30, 2013. Although
the tax freeze language sunset in June, 2013, Governor Walker has created a new funding model
beginning July 2013. In the new 2013-15 biennial budget, Governor Walker has introduced performance
based funding for distribution of all Wisconsin state aids. State office officials and system leaders will fully
define and create metrics for WTCS Colleges during 2013-14. In addition, general purpose revenues are
now consolidated and will be competitively pursued by the sixteen Wisconsin technical colleges. Finally,
the new budget includes the elimination of the $1.50 operational mill cap. Instead, the District's
operational tax levy growth will be limited to net new construction of the District as defined by the
Wisconsin Department of Revenue.

Strategic Planning

In the spring of 2010, Moraine Park Technical College embarked on a major planning initiative to set the
direction the College would pursue from 2011 to 2016. As the community’s technical college, it was
important to gather feedback from those the College serves to ensure its direction aligns with the
community’s needs. Listening sessions were held throughout the District with business and community
leaders, students and staff. Additional surveys were held throughout the summer and fall to gather
feedback from those not able to attend the listening sessions. Overall, a new 2011-2016 College vision,
mission, and value statements were created to direct the College’s planning for the next five years.



As part of this new plan, only three college goals were created emphasizing the need to focus annual
resources on a few strategic initiatives. Under direction from Coliege leadership, the 2012-13 strategic
plan was revised to align outcomes and initiatives with the College’s goals.

College reserves remain at approximately 33% of expenditures and are above the board recommended
guideline of 25%. However, College officials are unaware of the impact of the new performance based
funding model, the restricted growth limited by net new construction, and the revised processes for
distribution of general purpose revenues. Until these changes are fully defined and understood, District
board members will retain higher than anticipated reserves to smooth any financial disparities. College
surpluses are also being used to fund a new Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust (OPEB) created in
June, 2010.

Fiscal Planning

Despite the financial restrictions imposed by the State, MPTC maintains a favorable credit rating. In
September 2013, Moody's Investors Service assigned an Aaa rating to the District for a general obligation
debt sale. The report indicated that “the Aaa rating reflects the District’s sizable tax base favorably
located near major employment centers; strong financial operations that are supported by healthy
reserves; and, average debt burden that is expected to remain manageable” (Global Credit Research 10
Sept 2013).

To address these fiscal challenges, MPTC continually uses the following tools to assist with future
directional planning of the College:

¢ An extensive strategic plan which includes goals and measurable outcomes. All systems utilize
this plan to create system-wide and departmental plans which are directly linked to these College
goals.

¢ Annual follow-up studies including graduate placements, employer satisfaction reports, and
environmental scanning instruments are used to monitor changes in the labor markets,
demographics, technology and academia.

¢ The College utilizes numerous sources for identifying new program needs. These include the
College’s annual environmental scan, district employment projections data, business and
advisory committee input, and peer institution data.

o Academic staff utilize several program assessment tools to measure various aspects of program
viability include FTEs, enroliment, student placement statistics, student persistence and status of
assessment measures. Programs not meeting certain measures are suspended and may be
terminated in the future.

¢ The College developed a Facility Master plan in 2006 which is updated annually to create a
logical plan for facility building and maintenance projects.

o The Wisconsin Technical College System office requires a three-year facilities plan on an annual
basis. This document is updated annually after the master facility plan is reviewed and updated.

e A Technology plan identifies major technology projects for the College within the next three years
and is also updated annually. Projects include application development, network services, and
user support services.

These challenges in mind, the long-term financial planning established by the College in conjunction with
the District Board will allow Moraine Park to effectively meet the financial needs of operations in the
future. The overall current financial position is positive, and MPTC is committed to maintaining a positive
status in the future.



MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS AND CONTROLS

Moraine Park Technical College is committed to the development of good management systems and
controis. Every effort is made to employ qualified personnel. Likewise, systems are conscientiously
developed to enable MPTC employees to function effectively, while providing appropriate levels of
supervision and segregation of duties.

Accounting System

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to
ensure the reliability of financial and accounting records to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

In addition, as a recipient of state and federal financial assistance, the District is responsible for
maintaining an adequate internal control structure to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs.

We believe the District’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide
reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary System

The District's annual budget is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Wisconsin Technical
College System Board. Budgetary responsibility is delegated to the managers of various cost centers of
MPTC. Each year staff prepare, present and modify budget plans for the forthcoming year.

At the time the District Board adopts the budget, it establishes the dollar amount of the operational tax
levy, not the final mill rate, since valuation figures are not available until October. In addition, the Board
may adjust the levy amounts prior to setting the tax rates in October based on more current information.
Budgeted amounts are controlled by function within fund; modification or changes to the budget require
approval by a two-thirds vote of the District Board. The District also maintains an encumbrance system
as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules inciuded in the financial section of this report, the
District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Cash Management

The District Board adopted an overall investment policy delegating investment responsibility to the Vice
President, Finance and Administrative Services. The policy permits investments in any instruments
allowed within the Wisconsin Administrative Code. Idle cash during the year was invested in certificates
of deposit.

During 2011, the College implemented a new cash handling procedure to ensure all employees who
handle cash follow specified procedures to safeguard cash and to protect employees from inappropriate
charges of mishandling funds by defining employee responsibilities. All employees who handle cash are
now required to annually acknowledge and confirm the understanding and compliance with this
procedure. This new procedure is expected to increase internal controls related to all aspects of cash
management.

Risk Management

Since July 2004, the District maintains a comprehensive risk management program through Districts
Mutual Insurance Company (DMI). DMI is an insurance company jointly created by all sixteen Wisconsin
technical colleges. Through DMI, risk management services include an insurance program for property,
casuaity, and liability, an active safety committee, risk control services, risk management training and
specialized services in the District's risk management efforts. In addition, the District also maintains a
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self-insurance fund which is used to cover the deductible on liability coverage and on small claims for lost
or stolen items that fall below the deductible limits.

During 2011-12, the College started the creation of a comprehensive business continuity plan. The
entire project is expected to be complete in 2015-16 and will identify gaps within the College that could
create severe risk for operational continuity both short and long-term. As the project progresses, MPTC
will begin addressing identified needs as part of the annual budget planning process.

Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants, in addition to meeting
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines. The accounting firm of
Schenck SC was selected by the District Board to perform the annual audit. The audit report on the basic
financial statements is included in the financial section of this report. The auditors’ reports that relate
specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section.

EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

The District will submit this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report to the Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA) for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. To be
awarded this honor, the financial reporting entity must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents conform to program standards. This report
satisfies both the generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Moraine Park Technical College
District for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award that recognizes conformance with the highest
standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports. A Certificate of Achievement is
valid for a period of one year only. This is the 19th consecutive year that Moraine Park Technical College
District has received a Certificate of Achievement. We believe our current report continues to conform to
the program'’s requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for a certificate.
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CPAs AND SO MUCH MORE.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the District Board
Moraine Park Technical College District
Fond du Lac, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Moraine Park Technical College District,
Wisconsin (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the District as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the respective changes in financial position

and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note A.14 to the financial statements, the District adopted new accounting guidance, GASB
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, for the year ended
June 30, 2013. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress and the schedule of employer contributions on
pages 19 through 32 and 60 through 61 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District's basic financial statements. The financial information listed in the table of contents as
supplementary information and the other information, such as the introductory, statistical section, and the
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and schedule of state financial assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and the State Single Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration and
are also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information and schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the supplementary information, the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of
state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Report Issued in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 27, 2013,
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fohoned se.

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
November 27, 2013
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Moraine Park Technical College District's Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of its financial
condition provides an overview of financial activity, identifies changes in financial positions, and assists
the reader of the financial statements in focusing on noteworthy financial issues.

While maintaining its financial health is crucial to the long-term viability of the District, the primary mission
of a public institution of higher education is to provide education and training. Therefore, net position is
accumulated only as required to ensure that there are sufficient reserve funds for future operations and
implementation of new programs. The MD&A provides summary level financial information: therefore, it
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, as stated in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis for State and
Local Governments, and Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the revenues earned and
expenses incurred during the year. Activities are reported as either operating or non-operating. In
general, a public college such as Moraine Park Technical College will report an operating deficit or loss,
as the financial reporting model classifies state appropriations and property taxes as non-operating
revenues. The utilization of capital assets is reflected in the financial statements as depreciation which
amortizes the cost of an asset over its expected useful life.

The following is a condensed version of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 (dollars in thousands):

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
2013 2012 2013-2012 2011 2012-2011
Revenues '
Operating revenues
Tuition and fees $ 4536 $ 4642 3 (106) $ 5286 $ (644)
State and federal grants 14,732 15,680 (948) 16,986 (1,3086)
Contract revenue 3,247 2,959 288 2,862 97
Auxiliary revenues 2,412 2,607 (195) 2,962 (355)
Miscellaneous 984 861 123 1,065 (204)
Total operating revenues 25,911 26,749 (838) 29,161 (2,412)
Non-operating revenues
Property taxes 36,465 35,960 505 36,059 (99)
State operating appropriation 3,024 2,936 88 4,204 (1,268)
Investment income 89 84 5 94 (10
Total non-operating revenues 39,578 38,980 598 40,357 (1,377)
Capital contributions -
state and federal grants 111 80 31 185 (105)
Total revenues 65,600 65,809 (209) 69,703 (3,894)
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Increase Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)
2013 2012 2013-2012 2011 2012-2011
Expenses
Operating expenses
Instruction $ 26674 $ 26,729 $ (55) $ 27229 $ (500)
Instructional resources 1,976 2,009 (33) 2,364 (355)
Student services 6,192 6,417 (225) 6,463 (46)
General institutional 11,277 11,180 97 11,188 (8)
Physical plant 4,253 3,847 406 3,854 7
Auxiliary enterprise services 2,439 2,615 (176) 2,926 (311)
Depreciation 2,305 2,231 74 2,118 113
Student aid 7,949 8,598 (649) 8,930 (332
Total operating expenses 63,065 63,626 (561) 65,072 (1,446)
Non-operating expenses
Loss on disposal of capital assets 241 174 67 593 (419)
Interest expense 599 686 (87) 845 (159)
Total non-operating expenses 840 860 (20) 1,438 (578)
Total expenses 63,905 64,486 (581) 66,510 (2,024)
Increase in net position 1,695 1,323 § 372 3193 $ (1,870)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle (188) - 8 188 - 8 -
Net position — beginning of the year 49,208 47,885 44,692
Net position — end of the year $ 50,715 $ 49,208 $ 47,885

Fiscal Year 2013 Compared to 2012

Operating revenues are the charges for services offered by the District. During 2013, Moraine Park
generated more than $25.9 million of operating revenues. This was a decrease of approximately
$800,000 from the prior year, or 3.1%. Significant items were as follows:

Tuition and fee income, as reported in the basic financial statements, decreased by $106,000, or
2.3% from 2012. A combination of a slight decrease in FTE’s and an overall 5% reduction in financial
aid contributed to the decline. These declines were offset by a tuition rate increase (set by the WTCS
system) of 4.5%.

State and federal grants decreased 6% from 2012. The majority of this decrease was due to federal
student financial aid which decreased over 7% from the prior year, the combined effect of lower FTEs
and the continued growth in the financial needs of students.

Contract revenues experienced an increase of almost 10% over the prior year. A significant factor in
this was the continued efforts to reach high school students as part of the Career Prep contract.

Miscellaneous revenue increased compared to 2012 as a result of the Wisconsin Covenant
Foundation Grant received during the year to foster a three-year partnership with Wisconsin
advanced manufacturing businesses.

Operating expenses are costs related to offering the programs of the District. During 2013, operating
expenses decreased over $600,000 or slightly less than 1% from the prior year. The decrease was
primarily due to a combination of the following:

The new Jackson regional center expansion operational and leasehold improvement costs contribute
to the $4 million, 10.5% increase in the physical plant expenses.
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A decrease in the amount reported as student aid which is calculated for financial statement purposes
based on the distribution of 2013 financial aid between amounts applied to fees and amounts
refunded to students. The overall decrease in financial aid disbursements of approximately 5% from
2012 was a primary factor in this calculation.

Non-operating revenues and expenses are items not directly related to providing instruction. The most
significant components of non-operating revenues and expenses include the following:

Property taxes levied by the District for 2013 were $505,000 more than 2012.

Capital contributions from state and federal grant revenue increased through some new grant
initiatives beginning during the 2012 year.

Non-operating expenses are primarily a function of disposal activity of capital assets and interest paid
on the College’s long-term debt. During 2013 there was an increase in the amount of major
equipment disposals that were not fully depreciated and for which minimal proceeds were received
resulting in an increase in the loss on sale of capital assets. Interest expense decreased due in part
to lower interest rates.

Overall the net position increased over $1.6 million as a result of the above activity.

Fiscal Year 2012 Compared to 2011

During 2012, Moraine Park generated more than $26.7 million of operating revenues. This was a
decrease of approximately $2.4 million from the prior year, or 8.3%. Significant items were as follows:

Tuition and fee income, as reported in the basic financial statements, decreased by $644,000, or
12.2%. These fees are reflected net of scholarship allowances, a calculated amount based in part on
how much financial aid disbursed to students is applied to fees vs. refunded to the student. Financial
aid refunds are issued when the aid disbursement exceeds the balance due on a student’s account.
Gross fees decreased approximately 10% in 2012 due to a decline in FTEs of over 11% despite a
tuition rate increase (set by the WTCS system) of 5.5%. Overall financial aid, and thus scholarship
allowances, also decreased during 2012 but by a smaller percentage, all of which combined results in
the decrease in reported tuition and fees.

State and federal revenue decreased 7.7% from 2011. The majority of this decrease was due to
state and federal student financial aid which decreased nearly 7.7% from the prior year, the combined
effect of lower FTEs and the continued growth in the financial needs of students.

Contract revenues experienced a modest increase, 3.4%, over the prior year. A significant factor in
this was the rebound in offerings and enroliments in the College’s annual contract with the
Department of Corrections (DOC) as compared to the previous year.

Auxiliary revenue decreased nearly 12% from 2011-12 primarily as a result of the decrease in FTE's.

Miscellaneous revenue decreased compared to 2011, the year in which a one-time, class action
lawsuit settlement payment was received from Microsoft for nearly $200,000.

Operating expenses are costs related to offering the programs of the District. During 2012, operating
expenses decreased $1.4 million, or 2.2% from the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to:

A conscious effort by the College to cut costs and increase efficiency in anticipation of declining FTEs
and decreased state appropriations. While the general costs related to doing business continue to
increase, the College was successful in reducing overall operating expenses during 2012.

Wisconsin Act 10 legislation which required employees eligible for the Wisconsin Retirement System

(WRS) to pay 50% of their retirement contributions. Prior to this legislation, Moraine Park paid 100%
of the contribution for all eligible employees. As such, during 2012 the College had significantly less
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WRS expenses than in the prior year. The change did not affect Moraine Park faculty covered by a
previously negotiated bargaining agreement in effect until June 30, 2013.

A decrease in the amount reported as student aid which is calculated for financial statement purposes
based on the distribution of 2012 financial aid between amounts applied to fees and amounts
refunded to students. The overall decrease in financial aid disbursements, 5.2% from 2011, was a
primary factor in this calculation.

Non-operating revenues and expenses are items not directly related to providing instruction. The most
significant components of non-operating revenues and expenses include the following:

The District’s property tax levy for 2012 was just slightly lower than in 2011 due to a tax levy freeze
imposed by the State of Wisconsin coupled with decreasing property values which also explains the
small mill rate increase of approximately 1.7%.

State operating appropriations decreased by over $1.3 million or 30.2%. The amount of state
appropriations the College receives is a factor of enroliments and expenditures as compared to the
other 15 technical colleges in Wisconsin.

The country’s slow economic recovery has caused interest rates to remain at historically low levels
resulting in a decrease in investment income of approximately 11%. However, the reserve balances
continue to remain at a healthy level.

Capital contributions from state and federal grant revenue decreased rather significantly in 2012 due
to the allocation of grant funding between operating and capital items which changes from year to
year.

Non-operating expenses are primarily a function of disposal activity of capital assets and interest paid
on the College’s long-term debt. During 2012 there was a decrease in the amount of major
equipment disposals that were not fully depreciated and for which minimal proceeds were received
resuiting in a decrease in the loss on sale of capital assets. Interest expense also decreased due in
part to the savings resulting from debt refinancing activities during 2011.

Overall the net position increased over $1.3 million as a result of the above activity.
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Comparison of Operating Revenues
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011
(dollars in thousands)
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Comparison of Operating Expenses
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011
(dollars in thousands)
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Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information related to cash inflows and outflows summarized by
operating, capital, financing, and investing activities. This statement is important in evaluating the
District's ability to meet financial obligations as they mature.

The following schedule shows the major components of the Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended

June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011.

Net cash used in operating activities

Net cash provided by non-capital
financing activities

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents — beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents — end of the
year

Fiscal Year 2013 Compared to 2012

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
2013 2012 2013-2012 2011 2012-2011

$ (34492) $ (35463) $ 971 $ (34350) $ (1,113)

39,369 39,127 242 40,021 (894)
(3,621) (4,276) 655 (3,657) 619)
89 83 6 04 (1)
1,345 (529) $ 1,874 2108 _§ (2,637)
18,269 18,798 16,690
$ 19614 $ 18,269 $ 18,798

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the District had a net increase in cash and cash equivalents
of approximately $1.3 million dollars. Factors contributing to the increase included the following:

¢ As in previous years, the largest component of cash used in operating activities was payments to
employees for salaries/wages and benefits. Overall payments in this category decreased almost 3%
from the previous year. This is a result of reorganization of resources and staffing throughout the
college. Other post-employment benefit (OPEB) also decreased while payroll and benefit related
accruals remained consistent with the prior year.

e Another significant component of operating cash flows was payments to suppliers, which increased
slightly from 2012. Contributing to the increase was the fluctuation in year-end prepaid expense and

accounts payable balances.

e The above cash outflows were offset by cash inflows from operating activities, the largest of these
being tuition and fees, state and federal grants and contract revenue. The increase in contract
revenue and the reduction of accounts receivable contributes to the overall increase.

e All property taxes received are categorized as cash flows from non-capital financing activities. Cash
flow from tax levy was consistent with 2012 as both tax levy revenue and related year-end
receivables did not fluctuate significantly from the prior year. The other major item in this category,
state appropriations, increased slightly in 2013 based on an allocation formula using FTE and
expenditure information for all 16 technical colleges.

e The cash used in capital and related financing activities is primarily made up of two categories of
cash flows: purchases of capital assets and debt activity (debt proceeds and principal and interest
payments). Capital purchases and proceeds from the issuance of capital debt both increased during
the year. Principal payments also increased due to the refunding and early retirement of debt.
Further information is provided in Note D. The combined effect of these increases resulted in an
overall net decrease in the category of cash used in capital and related financing activities as

compared to 2012.
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Overall, the District had a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $1.3 million.

Fiscal Year 2012 Compared to 2011

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the District had a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
of approximately $529,000. Factors contributing to the decrease included the following:

¢ Asin previous years, the largest component of cash used in operating activities was payments to
employees for salaries/wages and benefits. Overall payments in this category decreased about 3.4%
from the previous year. A large part of the decrease is due to the decrease in the College’s WRS
expenses as a result of Act 10 legislation discussed earlier. Other post-employment benefit (OPEB)
payments also decreased slightly while payroll and benefit related accruals remained consistent with
the prior year.

¢ Another significant component of operating cash flows was payments to suppliers, which increased
slightly from 2011. Contributing to the increase was the fluctuation in year-end prepaid expense and
accounts payable balances.

¢ The above cash outflows were offset by cash inflows from operating activities, the largest of these
being tuition and fees and state and federal grants. The decrease in tuition rates, FTEs, and student
financial aid in 2012 resulted in lower revenue amounts, and thus lower cash inflows, than in 2011.
The year-end student receivable and deferred tuition balances remained consistent with the prior
year. Cash inflows from state and federal grants were down in 2012 due to decreases in revenue
from those sources.

s All property taxes received are categorized as cash flows from non-capital financing activities. Cash
flow from tax levy was consistent with 2011 as both tax levy revenue and related year-end
receivables did not fluctuate significantly from the prior year. The other major item in this category,
state appropriations, decreased significantly in 2012 based on an allocation formula using FTE and
expenditure information for all 16 technical colleges.

+ The cash used in capital and related financing activities is primarily made up of two categories of
cash flows: purchases of capital assets and debt activity (debt proceeds and principal and interest
payments). Capital purchases increased in 2012 while proceeds from the issuance of capital debt
decreased. Principal and interest payments on existing debt, which are based on the maturity
schedules of the College’s outstanding debt, also decreased. The combined effect of these changes
resulted in an overall increase in the category of cash used in capital and related financing activities
as compared to 2011.

¢ The final category on the cash flow statement, cash provided by investing activities, decreased in
2012 due to continued low interest rates on investment balances at levels consistent with the prior
year.

Overall, the District had a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $529,000.
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Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position includes all assets (items that the District owns and amounts owed to the
District by others), deferred outflows(inflows) of resources and liabilities (amounts owed to others by the
District and what has been collected from others for which a service has not yet been performed). This
statement is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and assets are
recognized when the service is provided, and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide
the service to the District — regardless of when cash is exchanged.

The following is a condensed version of the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2013, 2012, and
2011 (dollars in thousands).

Increase Increase

(Decrease) (Decrease)
2013 2012 2013-2012 2011 2012-2011
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19614 $ 18269 $ 1,345 §$ 18,798 $ (529)
Net capital assets 44,058 43,014 1,044 41,833 1,181
Other assets 20,171 21,528 (1,357) 21,134 394
Total assets 83,843 82,811 1,032 81,765 1,046
Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 15323 $ 15212 $ 111 $ 15115 $ 97
Long-term liabilities 17,805 18,095 (290 18,450 (355)
Total liabilities 33,128 33,307 (179) 33,565 (258)
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property Taxes - 296 (296) 315 (19)
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 25,031 23,815 1,216 22,393 1,422
Restricted for debt service 349 258 91 135 123
Unrestricted 25,335 25,135 200 25,357 (222)
Total net position $ 50715 $ 49208 $ 1,507 $ 47885 $ 1,323

Fiscal Year 2013 Compared to 2012

Details of the changes in assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, and net position between 2013
and 2012 include the following:

e Assets increased over $1 million, or 1.2%, during 2013.

— Cash and cash equivalents increased approximately $1.3 million as a result of the factors
discussed in the Statement of Cash Fiows above.

- Net capital assets increased slightly as a result of net 2013 asset additions exceeding
depreciation for the year.

- The other assets category is largely made up of receivable balances, the largest of these being
property taxes at $9.6 million at June 30, 2013. Overall year-end receivable balances decreased
due to a significant change in the Accounts Receivable asset related to the timing of the
Department of Corrections contract year end payment.

- Another item included in other assets for 2013 is a long-term other post-employment benefits
asset of over $3.2 million which represents the cumulative difference between the annual other
post-employment benefits (OPEB) cost and Moraine Park's contributions toward these costs.
OPEB is discussed in more detail in Note F.

» Liabilities and deferred inflows of resources decreased by $475,000, over 1%, from 2012 to 2013.
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Current liabilities increased slightly from the prior year. This is a resuit of a combination of
decreases and increases. A significant decrease in accrued health, dental and vision insurance
claims is due to timing of claims. An increase in the current portion of long-term debt due within
the next year is reflective of the debt refunding and is discussed further in Note D. A reduction of
the accounts payable liability offset’s the increase. Other current liability categories remained
relatively comparable to last year.

Long-term debt decreased minimally from the previous year. The decrease is the net effect of the
$6.9 million in new debt incurred in 2012-13 and the debt principal payments of approximately

$6 million made during the year based on the maturity schedules of the debt issued by the District
over the last 10 years as reflected in the Note D.

Net position increased approximately $1.5 million, or 3% from 2012 to 2013.

Net investment in capital assets increased by $261,000 due to the increase in capital assets and
repayment of general obligation notes payable used to finance capital acquisitions.

Restricted for debt service increased considerably as a result of borrowing for refunding of debt.
The funds were borrowed in June but not used for repayment until July.

Unrestricted net position remained consistent with the prior year (increasing less than 1%)
reflecting the efforts for astute financial management of District funds despite significant
decreases in state funding and FTEs.

Fiscal Year 2012 Compared to 2011

Details of the changes in assets, liabilities, and net position between 2012 and 2011 include the following:

Assets increased over $1.0 million, or 1.3%, during 2012,

Cash and cash equivalents decreased approximately $529,000 as a result of the factors
discussed in the Statement of Cash Flows above.

Net capital assets increased slightly as a result of net 2012 asset additions exceeding
depreciation for the year.

The other assets category is largely made up of receivable balances, the largest of these being
property taxes at $9.8 million at June 30, 2012. Overall year-end receivable balances remained
consistent with the prior year decreasing less than 3.3%.

Another item included in other assets for 2012 is a long-term other post-employment benefits
asset of over $2.9 million which represents the cumulative difference between the annual other
post-employment benefits (OPEB) cost and Moraine Park’s contributions toward these costs. At
June 30, 2011, the cumulative difference was $2 million. OPEB is discussed in more detail in
Note F.

Liabilities and deferred inflows of resources decreased by $277,000, less than 1%, from 2011 to
2012.

Current liabilities remained consistent with the prior year, a result of the offsetting effects of a
significant increase in accrued health, dental and vision insurance claims, an increase in the
portion of long-term debt due within the next year, and small to moderate decreases in a number
of the other current liability categories.

Long-term debt decreased minimally from the previous year. The decrease is the net effect of the
$4.7 million in new debt incurred in 2011-12 and the debt principal payments of approximately

$5 million made during the year based on the maturity schedules of the debt issued by the District
over the last 10 years.
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¢ Net position increased approximately $1.3 million, or 2.8% from 2011 to 2012.

- Netinvestment in capital assets increased by $1.4 million due to the increase in capital assets
and repayment of general obligation notes payabie used to finance capital acquisitions.

- Restricted for debt service increased as a resuit of a larger fund balance in the debt service fund
and lower accrued interest on long-term debt as compared to the previous year-end amounts.

— Unrestricted net position remained consistent with the prior year (decreasing less than 1%)
reflecting the efforts for astute financial management of District funds despite significant
decreases in state funding and FTEs.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

The District's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $44,058,192 and
$43,014,194 (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. This includes land and land improvements,
buildings and improvements, and moveable equipment. Significant building projects capitalized in fiscal
year 2013 included repurposing the vacant library at the Beaver Dam campus and the second phase of a
three year Building/Trades addition and remodeling project at the West Bend campus. Fiscal year 2012’s
activities included the addition of a new library and remodeled student life/cafeteria space at the Beaver
Dam campus and the initial phase of the three year Building/Trades addition and remodeling project at
the West Bend campus. Additional information on the District's capital assets can be found in Note C.

At the end of the 2013 and 2012 fiscal years, the District had total general obligation debt outstanding of
$23,295,000 and $22,485,000, respectively. The District bonds and notes maintained a rating of Aaa as
awarded by Moody’s Investors Services, and the District has continued to meet ali of its debt service
requirements. During 2013 the District issued, refunded and paid off general obligation promissory notes.
All general obligation debt for equipment is repaid in five years, while debt related to building and
remodeling is repaid in 10 years. The debt is secured by the full faith and credit of the unlimited taxing
powers of the District. The current debt adequately replaces and expands the equipment and facility
needs of the District. Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note D.

Financial Position

The District continued to improve its financial position during the year ended June 30, 2013 evidenced by
an increase in net position of $1.5 million. The District does not anticipate having to obtain short-term
borrowing for cash flow purposes, which is consistent with previous years. The District also has '
diversified sources of revenues consisting of property taxes, state aid, student fees, federal and state
grants, and other sources to meet the expenses of the District. With a diversity of revenues and the
fourth lowest mill rate in the technical college system, Moraine Park will continue to obtain the resources
to adequately finance normal enroliment over the next decade.

Economic Factors

The Wisconsin Department of Revenue indicates that the economy continues to grow at a moderate pace
with the forecast calling for growth in terms of jobs and income for 2013. Employment in Wisconsin is
expected to show positive growth through 2016. In 2013, Wisconsin employment will increase at a
modest pace. However, many factors will keep growth subdued: the federal sequester, weakness in the
global economy, weaker exports, persistent unemployment, and tight credit. The three largest
employment sectors in Wisconsin are trade, transportation and utilities; manufacturing; and, education
and health services. All three sectors are projected to grow within the next three years averaging slightly
less than 2% annually (Wisconsin Economic Outlook, Summer 2013).

The unemployment rate in Wisconsin was 7.1% in April 2013, lower than the national unemployment rate
of 7.5%. The state has seen a progressive decline in the unemployment rate as a result of moderate job
gains seen in the current recovery as weli as a decline in labor force participation since 2011. The
forecast calls for an unemployment rate of 6.9% in 2013 and 6.4% in 2014. By the end of 2016, the
Wisconsin unemployment rate is expected to be 5.2%, almost a full percentage point lower than the
national unemployment rate of 6.1% (Wisconsin Economic Outlook, Summer 2013).
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The housing section is showing signs of a recovery at the state and national levels. National forecasters
predict double-digit growth rates for housing starts between 2013 and 2015. This trend is evident in
Wisconsin with building permits in Wisconsin increasing 10.6% in 2012. This trend is expected through
2015 before slowing down again (Wisconsin Economic Qutlook, Summer 2013).

Finally, the report also indicates that Wisconsin personal income rose 2.7% in 2012. This is slower than
growth in 2011, when state personal incomes rose 4.5%. Wages and salaries, which are the biggest
component of personal income, rose 2.1%. Nationally, personal incomes were up 3.6% in 2012.
Personal income is projected to increase 1.9% in 2013 followed by faster growth in 2014,

Since Coliege enroliments are countercyclical to the economy, preliminary data indicates that laid off
workers are returning to work after retraining opportunities or when job training dollars expire. College
officials saw a decrease of 3.3%, 11.0% and 3.1% in the past three years following a significant 12.8%
increase of 3,648 FTEs during the 2010 recession peak. Officials are expecting to stabilize enrollments in
2013-2014 and are working on action plans to increase retention and enroliment growth for 2014-15 and
beyond. In addition to decreases in enrollment, there are some other challenges and critical concerns
that the College has identified:

o The state’s 2013-15 biennium budget eliminated the operating rate cap and replaced the rate cap
with strict levy limits, allowing for levy growth associated with net new construction only. Since
the District had historically levied well below the cap of 1.5 mills, it lost retained millage and has
foregone any growth related to appreciation of property values. Pending future construction
efforts, fiscal challenges will be significant as tax levy revenues support over 63% of the
operational expenditures. College officials will continue to educate state representatives on the
importance of local control and fiscal growth to meet the ever-changing needs of Wisconsin's
workforce.

e The state’s new budget also included the transition of state aids to a new performance-based
funding model. State office representatives are currently defining the criteria, but state aid
distributions will now be dispersed on competitive criteria for service areas that are distinctly
different throughout the state.

e Slow growth in the number of high school graduates throughout the District will mean significant
competition for these students as it relates to post-secondary education.

e Today's students are ill-prepared for the modern world of work. Many possess a strong tech
savvy background, but lack the basic human “soft skills” needed to function in a global workforce.
As such, the College consistently needs to train students on “soft skills” throughout their
academic curricula.

¢ Unfunded or partially-reimbursed mandates related to remedial services, veteran remissions, and
senior discounts will continue to erode District resources as these services are growing
exponentially.

¢ The mandate for other post-employment benefits reporting and new GASB disclosures on
pension plans will prompt additional financial planning and funding to offset the long-term
financial impact.

¢ Health insurance costs in comparison to economic growth will continue to rise. These increases
will force changes to benefit packages creating more competition for new hires.

o Continuing efforts to introduce sustainability components to all building projects and services at
the College will increase up-front costs. Although return on investment is substantiated,
resources for the initial investment may be significant.

o The recession has drastically impacted investment revenue and minimized opportunity to use
investment income as an alternative revenue stream.
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The impact of technology and resulting productivity of employers in the market require continuous
improvement of the College’s existing infrastructure and programs including the development of
new programs in response to evolving occupations and advancing technology.

The need to remain current with expanding technology is great. Technology-related expenses to
include maobile technology applications are a key requirement in providing a competitive, top-
notch education.

Despite these challenges, the staff members continually work to improve the financial condition of the
College by working on existing and new opportunities as indicated below:

Expand articulation agreements and joint efforts with college members of the UW System and
private colleges to provide seamless transition for students as they continue to pursue advanced
degrees.

The College has been a statewide leader in dual credit offerings to high school students within
the District; these offerings allow high school students the opportunity to earn both high school
and college credit through these efforts - thereby saving taxpayer dollars.

The College is also a leader in business and industry training. Efforts continue to meet with local
officials and business leaders to not only provide customized training, but also to create strategic
partnerships by competing for and receiving Wisconsin Advanced Training grants offered by the
State of Wisconsin.

The College continues to take advantage of state and federal funding opportunities that make
sense for fiscal viability within the goal of enhancing student success.

Staff members constantly review programs and services in order to meet the demands of the
District and the State’s workforce demands. Strong emphasis is placed on the retention efforts,
recruitment of part-time adult learners, second career training for baby boomer retirees and
assessing the success of each student.

Retirement studies conducted in Fond du Lac County, Washington County and for healthcare
workers throughout the Fox Valley region indicate a mass exodus of workers is upon us, and will
continue for the next 15 years. Moraine Park has an excellent opportunity to engage with
external partners to develop solutions for training an incoming middle-skilled workforce.

Moraine Park’s primary counties have significantly higher numbers of residents age 25 and older
with an educational attainment of high school or equivalent. Clearly, the College has
opportunities to grow the educational attainment level in the District's adult market.

Joining statewide efforts within the Wisconsin Technical College System to save resources as
demonstrated by the following:

o State purchasing consortium group — efforts have generated more than $261,000 in
savings alone for the College during 2012-13

o Districts Mutual Insurance Company — an insurance company created by the sixteen
technical colleges in Wisconsin to provide all services related to full risk management
services including administration of general liability, property, auto, worker's
compensation, and educator’s legal liability insurance lines; projected savings since
inception in 2004 equates to more than $10 million

o Joint library consortium that allows all members to access centralized databases and
electronic subscriptions at significantly reduced costs

Overall, the College is confident that its long-term financial condition is stable. The operational mill rate
for 2012-13 was $1.28490 — well below the statutory cap of $1.50. Operational reserves are strong and
for 2012-13 represent over 33% of operational expenses on a budgetary basis. Finally, the debt burden
is reasonable and is structured to be paid back in a relatively short, aggressive timeframe. The College is
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positioned to maintain a positive financial structure within this slow economic recovery and for several
years in the foreseeable future.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management
The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances. Questions
concerning the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be

addressed to the Vice President — Finance and Administrative Services, 235 N. National Avenue, Fond
du Lac, WI 54935,

31



MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,492,685 $ 15,648,745
Accounts receivable 687,784 2,369,707
Property taxes receivable 9,633,973 9,810,269
Federal and state aid receivable 693,357 652,141
Student fees receivable 4,498,994 4,279,661
Inventories 629,494 602,114
Prepaid expenses 779,711 687,234
Debt issuance costs - 47,702
Total current assets 31,415,998 34,097,573
Non-current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,121,702 2,620,588
Debt issuance costs - 140,433
Other post-employment benefits 3,247,287 2,938,052
Capital assets 78,202,350 75,827,300
Less accumulated depreciation (34,144,158) (32,813,106)
Total non-current assets 52,427,181 48,713,267
TOTAL ASSETS 83,843,179 82,810,840
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,262,041 2,893,925
Accrued payroll, payroil taxes, and retirement 1,879,153 1,835,283
Accrued vacation 466,337 448,800
Accrued health, dental and vision claims 455,669 940,974
Accrued interest 124,675 149,639
Unearned revenue - student fees 4,322,892 4,257,201
Other unearned revenue 48,259 32,952
Due to other organizations 26,794 26,794
Due to student organizations 247,633 236,488
General obligation debt - current portion 5,490,000 4,390,000
Total current liabilities 15,323,453 15,212,056
Long-term Liabilities
General obligation debt 17,805,000 18,095,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 33,128,453 33,307,056
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes - 295,833
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 25,986,176 23,815,330
Restricted for debt service 348,351 257,862
Unrestricted 24,380,199 25,134,759
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 50,714,726 $ 49,207,951

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Operating Revenues

Student program fees, net of scholarship allowances of
$4,097,735 and $4,122,054 for 2013 and 2012, respectively

Student material fees, net of scholarship allowances of
$230,415 and $234,054 for 2013 and 2012, respectively

Other student fees, net of scholarship allowances of
$510,884 and $537,570 for 2013 and 2012, respectively

Federal grants
State grants
Contract revenue
Auxiliary enterprise revenues
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Instruction
Instructional resources
Student services
General institutional
Physical plant
Auxiliary enterprise services
Depreciation
Student aid

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Property taxes

State operating appropriations
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Investment income earned
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income before contributions
Capital contributions - state and federal grants
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Net position - beginning of the year

Net position - end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

2013 2012
3,840,830 $ 3,910,248
215,970 222,027
478,855 509,948
12,786,015 14,078,300
1,946,266 1,602,153
3,247,325 2,959,294
2,412,418 2,606,817
983,655 860,502
25,911,334 26,749,289
26,673,506 26,729,423
1,976,114 2,008,717
6,192,271 6,416,632
11,276,809 11,180,309
4,252,271 3,846,962
2,439,387 2,614,739
2,305,394 2,230,649
7,948,743 8,598,564
63,064,495 63,625,995
(37,153,161) (36,876,706)
36,465,081 35,959,981
3,023,949 2,935,635
(241,381) (173,201)
88,969 83,418
(699,067) (685,715)
38,737,551 38,119,418
1,684,390 1,242,712
110,520 80,002
1,694,010 1,322,714
(188,135) -
49,207,951 47,885,237
50,714,726 $ 49,207,951




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Tuition and fees received

Federal and state grants received
Contract revenue received
Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers

Auxiliary enterprise revenue received
Other receipts

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Property taxes received
State appropriations received

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Federal and state appropriations received for capital assets
Purchases of capital assets

Proceeds on sale of capital assets

Proceeds from issuance of capital debt

Debt issuance costs capitalized

Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the
statement of net position

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivaients

Total cash and cash equivalents
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2013 2012

4,382,013 4,503,868
14,691,085 15,814,769
4,857,615 3,331,231
(36,804,995) (38,285,840)
(25,100,316) (24,148,117)
2,486,833 2,629,690
996,180 691,023
(34,491,605) (35,463,376)
36,345,544 36,191,778
3,023,949 2,935,635
39,369,493 39,127,413
110,520 80,002
(3,936,842) (3,353,091)
18,550 22,685
6,855,000 4,735,000
- (53,785)
(6,045,000) (5,040,000)
(624,031) (667,268)
(3,621,803) (4,276,457)
88,969 83,418
1,345,054 (529,002)
18,269,333 18,798,335
19,614,387 18,269,333
14,492,685 15,648,745
5,121,702 2,620,588
19,614,387 18,269,333




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities
Operating loss $ (37,153,161) $ (36,876,706)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating
activities
Depreciation 2,305,394 2,230,649
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1,681,923 243,116
Federal and state aid receivable (41,216) 134,316
Student fees receivable (219,333) (48,706)
Inventories (27,380) 33,557
Prepaid expenses (92,477) (63,487)
Accounts payable (304,365) (492,696)
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes, and retirement 43,870 (118,570)
Accrued vacation 17,637 (4,951)
Accrued health, dental and vision claims (485,305) 554,250
Unearned revenue - student fees 65,691 (89,649)
Other unearned revenue 15,307 (17,785)
Due to other organizations - (3,121)
Due to student organizations 11,145 (6,096)
Other post-employment benefits (309,235) (937,497)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (34,491,605) $ (35,463,376)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,009 10,604
Non-current Assets
Investments 4,539,397 3,881,080
TOTAL ASSETS 4,540,406 3,891,684
NET POSITION
Held in Trust for post-employment benefits 4,540,406 3,891,684
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 4,540,406 3,891,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
ADDITIONS
Contributions
MPTC $ 200,000 925,000
Investment Income
Interest 3 -
Dividends 126,131 103,246
Net change in fair value of investments 343,544 (27,102)
Total investment income 469,678 76,144
Total additions 669,678 1,001,144
DEDUCTIONS
Administrative expenses 20,956 16,520
Total deductions 20,956 16,520
Change in Net Position 648,722 084,624
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:
Beginning of year 3,891,684 2,907,060
End of year $ 4,540,406 3,891,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Moraine Park Technical College was organized in 1911. In 1967 MPTC dropped its status as a city institution
and became an area district under the Wisconsin Vocational, Technical and Adult Education system. In April
1994 Moraine Park Technical College became officially known as the Moraine Park Technical College District.
Three campuses located at West Bend, Beaver Dam, and Fond du Lac, two regional centers in Hartford and
Ripon, as well as several centers throughout the District offer associate degree programs in technical education,
vocational programs and a wide range of courses in adult education.

The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAP) as applicable to public colleges and universities as well as those prescribed by the
Wisconsin Technical College System Board (WTCSB). The following is a summary of the significant accounting
policies:

1. Reporting Entity

The District Board (Board) oversees the operations of the District under provisions of Chapter 38 of the
Wisconsin Statutes. The District includes all of Fond du Lac and Green Lake counties, major portions of
Dodge and Washington counties, and parts of Calumet, Sheboygan, Waushara, Winnebago, Marquette, and
Columbia counties. The Board consists of nine members appointed by county board chairpersons of the ten
counties within the service area. As the District's governing authority, the Board’s powers include:

Authority to borrow money and levy taxes;
Budgetary authority; and

Authority over other fiscal and general management of the District which includes, but is not limited to,
the authority to execute contracts, to exercise control over facilities and properties, to determine the
outcome or disposition of matters affecting the recipients of the services being provided, and to approve
the hiring or retention of key management personnel who implement Board policy and directives.

In November 2010, GASB issued statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus.” This
statement amends GASB issued Statement No. 39, “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units” and GASB Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity,” to provide additional
guidance to determine whether certain organizations for which the District is not financially accountable
should be reported as component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the
District. Generally, it requires reporting as a component unit when an organization that raises and holds
economic resources for the direct benefit of a governmental unit.

The Moraine Park Foundation, Inc. (Foundation) is a not-for-profit corporation whose purpose is to solicit,
hold, manage, invest and expend endowment funds and other gifts, grants and bequests exclusively for the
maintenance and benefit of the District and its students. The Foundation has an independent board and is
not fiscally accountable to the District. The financial resources of the Foundation are not significant to the
District as a whole and accordingly, financial information related to the Foundation is not presented in these
financial statements.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

2.

Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

For financial reporting purposes, the District is considered a special purpose government engaged only in
business-type activities. Accordingly, the District's financial statements are reported using the economic .
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the years for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
All significant inter-District transactions have been eliminated.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the District to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all investments with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. To facilitate cash management, cash is combined in common
operating accounts.

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Property Tax and Taxes Receivable

The District disseminates its property tax levy to city, village, and town clerks in October of the fiscal year for
which the taxes are levied. Property taxes are recognized as District revenue when it is measurable and
available. Instaliment payments associated with principal and interest due on general obligation notes and
bonds payable after June 30 are considered deferred revenue. The following dates are pertinent to the
District's tax calendar:

Levy date October 31
Assessment date January 1
Due dates January 31 (full)
January 31 and July 31 (installments)
Lien date August 31
Settlement dates February and August

The District recognizes the property tax levy as revenue in the fiscal year for which the taxes were levied,
except for tax levy collections applicable to debt service funding for the subsequent year. These collections
do not meet the revenue recognition criteria and are reported as deferred property taxes at June 30, 2013.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2013 and 2012 ,

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Under Section 38.16 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the District Board may levy a tax not to exceed a rate of
$1.50 per $1,000 of the full equalized value of taxable property within the area served by the District for the
purposes of making capital improvements, acquiring equipment, and operating and maintaining schools.
The mill rate limitation is not applicable to taxes levied for the purposes of paying principal and interest on
general obligation notes and bonds payable issued by the District. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, the District levied taxes at the following mill rates:

Year ended Year ended

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
Operating purposes $1.28490 $1.24206
Debt service requirements 25572 .23896
' Total $ 1.54062 $1.48102

The 2012 tax levy used to finance the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was $36,147,317. The 2011 tax levy
used to finance the prior year was $35,947,317.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market. Such inventories consist of the
contents of the bookstore, food service supplies, auto parts, and certain other supplies. Instructional and
administrative inventories are recorded as expenses when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent payments made by the District for which benefits extend beyond June 30.

8. Capital Assets

9.

Capital assets are valued at the historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost history is not
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.

The costs of maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’
lives are charged to operations as incurred. Equipment assets having a cost of $5,000 or more per unit and
building or remodeling projects of $15,000 or more are capitalized. Depreciation on capital assets is
provided in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the depreciable assets to operations on the straight-line
basis over the estimated service lives, which range from 5 to 15 years for equipment, 20 years for land
improvements, and 50 years for buildings and improvements.

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation, Income Protection, and Other Employee Benefit Amounts

Vacation:
District employees are granted vacation in varying amounts based on length of contract or hours
worked. Vacation earned is forfeited if not taken within six months following the end of the fiscal year in
which it was earned. Vacation pay is accrued when earned.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

10.

11.

12.

Income Protection:
As provided in the applicable negotiated contracts and District procedures, income protection is granted
to employees based on a formula. Income protection allows employees to take paid leave for personal
ilnesses, deaths in the family, attendance at funerals, temporary medical disabilities, or other personal
obligations. The amount of days credited to an employee’s account is based on negotiated formulas
and District procedures. Any unused portion is allowed to accumulate to a maximum number of days,
but is lost upon retirement or termination. Accumulated unpaid amounts are not accrued.

Retirement Plan:
The District has a retirement plan covering substantially all of its employees which is funded through
contributions to the Wisconsin Retirement System. All contributions made by the District on behalf of its
employees are reported as expenses when incurred.

Post-retirement health, dental and life benefits:
Upon retirement, District employees meeting a minimum age and length of service requirement may
participate in the District's group health and dental insurance plans. The District pays 70% of the health
premiums and 90% of the dental premiums (100% for persons who retired prior to July 1, 2006) until
age 65. If a retiree and spouse participate in a health risk assessment or complete an annual physical
with blood work, the District pays 90% of the health premiums. At age 65, a dental plan is available
through COBRA continuation for 18 months. A vision plan is available for 18 months after retirement
through COBRA continuation. Life insurance premiums are paid in full by the District for employees
who retired prior to July 1, 2009 until a death benefit is paid. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the District
had 214 and 206 retirees receiving benefits, respectively. Additional information regarding the District's
other post-employment benefits is included in Note F.

Tuition and Fees and Student Accounts Receivable

Tuition and fees are recorded as revenue in the period in which the related activity or instruction takes place.
Revenues for the summer semester are prorated on the basis of student class days occurring before and
after June 30.

The District's student fees receivable is stated at amounts due from students, net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts, if appropriate. Amounts outstanding longer than the agreed upon payment terms are
considered past due. The District determines its allowance for doubtful accounts by considering a number
of factors including length of time amounts are past due, the District’s previous loss history, and the
student’s ability to pay his or her obligation. The District writes off receivables when they become
uncollectible. At June 30, 2013, the District has determined that an allowance for doubtful accounts is not
necessary based on the above criteria, which is consistent with the prior year.

State and Federal Revenues

The District receives funding pursuant to various federal and state contracts and grants. Some of these
revenues are earned over fiscal periods different than that of the District and are subject to the Federal and
State Single Audit Act guidelines.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees prior to the end of the fiscal year but
related to the subsequent accounting period. Unearned revenues also include amounts received from grant
and contract sponsors that have not yet been earned.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

13.

14.

15.

16.

Scholarship Allowances and Student Financial Aid

All financial aid awarded to students, including loans and private scholarships, is reflected in the financial
statements as operating expenses or scholarship allowances, which reduce revenues. The amount
reported as operating expenses represents the portion of aid that was provided to students in the form of
cash. Scholarship allowances represent the portion of aid provided to students in the form of reduced
tuition.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Revenues,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement no. 65, ltems Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013. In addition to assets, the statement of financial
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
The District current does not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District currently does not have any items that qualify for
reporting in this category.

Net Position

Net position is classified according to restrictions or availability of assets for satisfaction of District
obligations. Restricted net position is resources which the District is legally or contractually obligated to
spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties.

Net investment in capital assets represent the net value of capital assets (property, plant, and equipment)
less the debt incurred to acquire or construct the assets plus borrowed resources not yet expended, but
restricted for capital purchases. Restricted net position for debt service can only be used to repay debt
service costs (principal and interest) as they are levied for that specific purpose. All remaining net position
is unrestricted for legal purposes, but may be designated for specific purposes.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, it is the
District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Classification of Revenue and Expense

The District has classified its revenues and expenses as either operating or non-operating according to the
following criteria:

Operating revenues and expenses include activities that have the characteristics of exchange
transactions to provide goods or services related to the District's principal onging operations.
Operating revenues include student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances, sales and
services of auxiliary enterprises, and most federal, state, and local grants and contracts. Operating
expenses include the cost of providing educational services, student aid, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets.
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Non-operating revenues and expenses include activities that have the characteristics of non-
exchange transactions. Nonoperating revenues are classified as defined by GASB Statement No. 9,
Reporting Cash Flow of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. These revenues
include the local property tax levy, state appropriations, investment income, and any grants and
contracts not classified as operating revenue or restricted by the grantor to be used exclusively for
capital expenses. Nonoperating expenses include interest on long-term obligations and losses on
the disposal of capital assets.

NOTE B: CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments of the District consist of deposits and investments that are restricted by the Wisconsin
Statutes to the following:

Time deposits; repurchase agreements; securities issued by federal, state and local governmental
entities; statutorily authorized commercial paper and corporate securities; and the Wisconsin local
government investment pool. Investments in the post-employment benefit trust fund may be invested in
other types of investments as authorized under Wisconsin Statute 881.01, “Uniform Prudent Investor
Act’.

The carrying amount of the District's cash and investments totaled $24,154,793 and $22,161,017 as of June 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively, as summarized below:

2013 2012
Petty cash funds 13,432 13,432
Interest bearing demand deposits 10,100,955 13,255,901
Certificates of deposit 9,500,000 5,000,000
Investments
Money market mutual fund 1,009 10,604
Mutual funds — equity 2,853,978 2,243,155
Mutual funds — fixed income 1,685,419 1,637,925
24,154,793 22,161,017
Reconciliation to the basic financial statements:
2013 2012
Statements of net position
Cash and cash equivalents 14,492,685 15,648,745
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,121,702 2,620,588
Fiduciary fund statements of net position
Post-employment benefits trust 4,540,406 3,891,684
24,154,793 22,161,017

Deposits and investments of the District are subject to various risks. Presented below is a discussion of specific

risks and the District’s policy related to the risk.




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE B: CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be
able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.
The District's investment policy minimizes credit risk by limiting investments to the safest type of securities.

Deposits with financial institutions within the State of Wisconsin are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for time and savings deposits and $250,000 for demand deposits
per official custodian per insured depository institution. Deposits with financial institutions located outside the
State or Wisconsin are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 per official custodian per depository
institution. In addition, non-interest bearing transaction accounts are fully insured through December 31, 2012.
Also, the State of Wisconsin has a State Guarantee Fund which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public
depository above the amount provided by an agency of the U.S. Government. However, due to the relatively
small size of the State Guarantee Fund in relation to the Fund’s total coverage, total recovery of insured losses
may not be available.

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, $19,062,811 and $18,291,611 of the District's deposits with financial institutions
were in excess of federal and state depository insurance limits and uncollateralized (or collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution or its trust department or agent but not in the District's name).

Credit Risk: Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Wisconsin statutes limit investments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2013
for each investment type.

Exempt from

Investment Type Amount Disclosure AAA Aa Not Rated
Money market mutual fund $ 1,009 $ - % 1,009 § - $ -
Mutual funds - equity 2,853,978 - - - 2,853,978
Mutual funds - fixed income 1,685,419 - - - 1,685,419
Totals $ 4,540,406 $ - $ 1,009 $ - $ 4539397

Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2012 for each investment type.

Exempt from

Investment Type Amount Disclosure AAA Aa Not Rated
Money market mutual fund $ 10,604 $ - $ 10,604 $ - $ -
Mutual funds - equity 2,243,155 - - - 2,243,155
Mutual funds - fixed income 1,637,925 - - - 1,637,925
Totals $ 3,891,684 $ - $ 10,604 $ - $ 3,881,080
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Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its
fair value to changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising
from rising interest rates, the District's investment policy limits the maturity of any security to no more than one
year from the date of purchase. Presented below are the maturities as of June 30, 2013 for each investment

type.
Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months or 13t0 24 25 to 60 More Than 60
Investment Type Amount Less Months Months Months
Money market mutual fund $ 1,009 $ 10090 $ $
Mutual funds - fixed income 1,685,419 1,685,419
Totals $ 1,686,428 $ 1,686,428 $ $

Presented below are the maturities as of June 30, 2012 for each investment type.

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months or 13t0 24 25 to 60 More Than 60
Investment Type Amount Less Months Months Months
Money market mutual fund $ 10604 $ 10604 § $
Mutual funds - fixed income 1,637,925 1,637,925
Totals $ 1,648,529 $ 1,648,529 $ $
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NOTE C:. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30,2013
Non-depreciable capital assets
Land $ 830,602 - $ - $ 830,602
Total non-depreciable capital
assets 830,602 - - 830,602
Depreciable capital assets
Land improvements 1,646,195 - - 1,646,195
Buildings and improvements 55,642,676 1,862,931 - 57,505,607
Equipment 17,707,827 1,746,392 1,234,273 18,219,946
Total depreciable capital assets 74,996,698 3,609,323 1,234,273 77,371,748
Total cost of capital assets 75,827,300 3,609,323 1,234,273 78,202,350
Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements 704,318 76,949 - 781,267
Buildings and improvements 19,096,959 1,208,136 , - 20,305,095
Equipment 13,011,829 1,020,309 974,342 13,057,796
Total accumulated depreciation 32,813,106 2,305,394 974,342 34,144,158
Net capital assets 43,014,194 1,303,929 $ 259,931 44,058,192
Less related long-term debt
outstanding (net of available debt
proceeds of $3,286,136 and
$4,267,984 as of July 1, 2012
and June 30, 2013, respectively) (19,198,864) (19,027,016)
Net investment in capital assets $ 23,815,330 $25,031,176
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The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30,2012
Non-depreciable capital assets
Land $ 830,602 $ - $ - $ 830,602
Total non-depreciable capital
assets 830,602 - - 830,602
Depreciable capital assets
Land improvements 1,308,989 337,206 - 1,646,195
Buildings and improvements 53,357,502 2,328,104 42,930 55,642,676
Equipment 17,674,411 942,913 909,497 17,707,827
Total depreciable capital assets 72,340,902 3,608,223 952,427 74,996,698
Total cost of capital assets 73,171,504 3,608,223 952,427 75,827,300
Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements 602,079 102,239 - 704,318
Buildings and improvements 18,014,368 1,113,103 30,5612 19,096,959
Equipment 12,721,851 1,015,307 725,329 13,011,829
Total accumulated depreciation 31,338,298 2,230,649 755,841 32,813,106
Net capital assets 41,833,206 $ 1,377,574 $ 196,586 43,014,194
Less related long-term debt
outstanding (net of available debt
proceeds of $3,349,321 and
$3,286,136 as of July 1, 2011
and June 30, 2012, respectively) (19,440,679) (19,198,864)
Net investment in capital assets $ 22,392,527 $ 23,815,330
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NOTE D: GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the District consist of general obligation notes payable. Changes in these liabilities

during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are summarized below:

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2012 Additions Payments June 30, 2013 one year
General obligation
notes payable $ 22,485,000 $ 6,855,000 $ 6,045,000 $ 23,295,000 $ 5,490,000
Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2011 Additions Payments June 30, 2012 one year
General obligation
notes payable $ 22,790,000 $ 4,735,000 $ 5,040,000 $ 22,485,000 $ 4,390,000

All general obligation debt is secured by the full faith and credit and unlimited taxing powers of the District.
General long-term debt obligations at June 30, 2013 and 2012 are comprised of the following individual issues:

Balance
June 30, 2013

Balance
June 30, 2012

$1,780,000 general obligation promissory notes dated April 1, 2004 to

R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building remodeling and improvement

projects. Semi-annual interest payments ranging from 2.5% to 3.5%

are to be made on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal

payments are due annually on April 1. Final maturity in

April 2014, $ 210,000

$3,450,000 general obligation promissory notes dated September 1,

2004 to R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building remodeling and improvement

projects. Semi-annual interest payments ranging from 3.0% to 3.65%

are to be made on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal

payments are due annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 2014. 65,000

$1,850,000 general obligation promissory notes dated May 1, 2005 to

Harris Trust and Savings Bank for building expansion, remodeling and

improvement projects and acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-

annual interest payments ranging from 3.0% to 3.75% are to be made

on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are

due annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 2015. 335,000
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$3,000,000 general obligation promissory notes dated October 1, 2005
to Piper Jaffray, Inc. for building remodeling and improvement projects
and the acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual interest
payments ranging from 3.3% to 3.65% are to be made on October 1
and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due annually
on April 1. Final maturity in April 2015.

$2,600,000 general obligation promissory notes dated May 1, 2006 to
JP Morgan for building expansion, remodeling and improvement
projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual
interest payments ranging from 3.75% to 4.25% are to be made on
October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due
annually on April 1. Refinanced in June 2013; payment settled in July

. 2013.

$1,400,000 general obligation promissory notes dated June 30, 2006 to
Harris Trust and Savings Bank for building remodeling and
improvement projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment.
Semi-annual interest payments ranging from 4.0% to 4.4% are to be
made on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal
payments are due annually on April 1. Paid in advance in June, 2013,

$2,970,000 general obligation promissory notes dated

October 11, 2006 to Bankers’ Bank for building remodeling and
improvement projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment.
Semi-annual interest payments ranging from 3.7% to 3.8% are to be
made on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal
payments are due annually on April 1. Refinanced in June 2013;
payment settled in July 2013.

$1,830,000 general obligation promissory notes dated May 9, 2007 to
R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building expansion, remodeling and
improvement projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment.
Semi-annual interest payments of 4.0% are to be made on October 1
and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due annually
on April 1. Final maturity in April 2017.

$2,745,000 general obligation promissory notes dated October 10, 2007
to R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building remodeling and improvement
projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual
interest payments ranging from 3.75% to 4.0% are to be made on
October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due
annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 2017.

$1,500,000 general obligation promissory notes dated June 10, 2008 to
R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building expansion, remodeling and
improvement projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment.
Semi-annual interest payments of 4.5% are to be made on October 1
and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due annually
on April 1. Final maturity in April 2018.
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$ 200,000

375,000

580,000
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815,000

835,000

300,000

985,000

490,000

755,000

980,000

995,000

980,000
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$2,365,000 general obligation promissory notes dated October 8, 2008
to Bankers Bank for building remodeling and improvement projects and
the acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual interest payments
of 3.0% are to be made on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying
principal payments are due annually on April 1. Final maturity in April
2018.

$3,425,000 general obligation promissory notes dated May 6, 2009 to
R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building expansion, remodeling and
improvement projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment.
Semi-annual interest payments of 2.7% are to be made on October 1
and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due annually
on April 1. Final maturity in April 2019,

$2,315,000 general obligation promissory notes dated October 8, 2009
to R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building remodeling and improvement
projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual
interest payments ranging from 2.0% to 2.5% are to be made on
October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due
annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 2015.

$2,615,000 general obligation promissory notes dated May 12, 2010 to
R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building remodeling and improvement
projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual
interest payments ranging from 2.0% to 3.0% are to be made on
October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due
annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 2020.

$1,905,000 general obligation promissory notes dated October 6, 2010
to R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building remodeling and improvement
projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual
interest payments ranging from 1.0% to 2.0% are to be made on
October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due
annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 2015.

$4,935,000 general obligation promissory notes dated June 8, 2011 to
R.W. Baird & Co., Inc. for building expansion, remodeling and
improvement projects, the acquisition of moveable equipment and the
refunding of bonds issued in 2001. Semi-annual interest payments
ranging from 2.0% to 3.0% are to be made on October 1 and April 1 of
each year. Varying principal payments are due annually on April 1.
Final maturity in April 2021.

$1,830,000 general obligation promissory notes dated September 7,
2011 to R.W. Baird & Co., for building expansion, remodeling and
improvement projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment.
Semi-annual interest payments ranging from 1.0% to 2.0% are to be
made on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal
payments are due annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 20186.
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455,000

2,260,000

750,000

1,810,000

675,000

3,655,000

860,000

870,000

2,570,000

1,165,000

2,030,000

995,000

4,305,000

1,130,000
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Balance Balance
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012

$2,905,000 general obligation promissory notes dated June 6, 2012 to

UMB Bank N.A., for building expansion, remodeling and improvement

projects and the acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual

interest payments ranging from 1.25% to 1.85% are to be made on

October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are due

annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 2022. 3 2,660,000 3 2,905,000

$4,000,000 general obligation promissory notes dated October 10, 2012

to UMB Bank N.A., for remodeling and improvement projects and the

acquisition of moveable equipment. Semi-annual interest payments

ranging from 1.00% to 1.65% are to be made on October 1 and April 1

of each year. Varying principal payments are due annually on April 1.

Final maturity in April 2022. 3,100,000 -

$2,855,000 general obligation promissory notes dated June 27, 2013 to

UMB Bank N.A., for building expansion, the acquisition of moveable

equipment and the refunding of notes issued in 2006 and 2007. Semi-

annual interest payments ranging from 1.25% to 2.20% are to be made

on October 1 and April 1 of each year. Varying principal payments are

due annually on April 1. Final maturity in April 2023. ' 2,855,000 -

Total general Ibng-term debt obligations $ 23,295,000 $ 22,485,000

Aggregate maturities of principal and interest of the general obligation debt are as follows:

Years ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 5,490,000 $ 498,698 $ 5,988,698
2015 4,315,000 395,727 4,710,727
2016 3,485,000 297,259 3,782,259
2017 2,525,000 221,098 2,746,098
2018 2,025,000 159,719 2,184,719
2019-2023 5,455,000 255,420 5,710,420

$ 23,295,000 $ 1,827,921 $  25/122,921

The District issued general obligation notes of $2,855,000 on June 27, 2013 to finance capital projects,
purchase equipment, and refund $955,000 of general obligation promissory notes dated June 30, 2006 and
October 11, 2006. The District retired the refunded debt in July of 2013. In addition, the District paid off the
general obligation promissory note dated May 1, 2006. The refunding and early retirement of debt reduced
future debt service payments (interest) by approximately $98,000.

Wisconsin State Statutes limit the total general obligation debt of Moraine Park Technical College District to 5%

of the equalized valuation of taxable property within the District and further limit the District's bonded
indebtedness to 2% of equalized valuation.
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At June 30, 2013, the District's aggregate general obligation debt and aggregate bonded indebtedness (net of
resources available to fund the debts) was $23,295,000 and $0, respectively. The 5% and 2% limits as of June
30, 2013 were $1,214,583,118 and $485,833,247.

At June 30, 2012, the District's aggregate general obligation debt and aggregate bonded indebtedness (net of
resources available to fund the debts) was $22,485,000 and $0. The 5% and 2% limits as of June 30, 2012
were $1,255,792,062 and $502,316,825 respectively.

NOTE E: RETIREMENT PLAN

All eligible District employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees, initially employed by a
participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year (440 hours for
teachers and educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. Ail employees, initially employed by a
participation WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1200 hours a year (880
hours for teachers and educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in WRS. Note: Employees hired to work nine or ten months
per year (e.g. teachers contracts) but expected to return year after year are considered to have met the one-
year requirement.

Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011 the employees required contribution was
changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General category employees, including
Teachers, and Executives and Elected Officials. Required contributions for protective contributions are the
same rate as general employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially
determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required contribution uniess provided for
by an existing collective bargaining agreement. Contribution rates are as follows:

2012 2013
Employee Employer Employee Employer
General (inciuding Teachers) 5.9% 5.9% 6.65% 6.65%
Executives & Elected Officials 7.05% 7.05% 7.0% 7.0%
Protective with Social Security 5.9% 9.0% 6.65% 9.75%
Protective without Social Security  5.9% 11.3% 6.65% 12.35%

The payroll for District employees covered by the WRS for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $25,131,912; the
District's total payroll was $26,350,814. The total required contribution for the year ended June 30, 2013 was
$3,155,002, which consisted of $1,784,888 for the employer portion (5.9% from July 2012 thru December 2012
and 6.65% from January 2013 thru June 2013) and $1,370,114 for the employee portion (5.9% from July 2012
thru December 2012 and 6.65% from January 2013 thru June 2013). Total contributions for the years ending
June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $3,155,002, $2,902,405, and $2,877,086, respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation employees with
less than 25 years of service, 53 for protective occupation employees with more than 25 years of service) are
entitled to receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupation
employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the benefit are; (1) final average
earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. A final average earnings is the average of the
employee’s three highest years’ earnings. Employees terminating covered employment and submitting

52



MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE E: RETIREMENT PLAN - CONTINUED

application before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may withdraw their contributions and, by doing so,
forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990
and no longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for
eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 and prior to
July 1, 2011 are immediately vested. Participants who initially become WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011
must have five years of creditable service to be vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all benefits are
determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be
obtained by writing to the Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, WI 53707-7931.

NOTE F: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Annual Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:

The District's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the
employer, an amount actuariaily determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, for this single-
employer defined benefit plan. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a closed
amortization period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the District's
annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net
OPEB obligation (asset).

2013 2012
Annual required contribution $ 664,944 $ 908,580
Interest on net OPEB (176,283) (120,033)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 201,364 137,111
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 690,025 925,658
Contributions made (999,260) (1,863,155)
Change in net OPEB obligation (309,235) (937,497)
OPEB obligation (asset) — beginning of the year (2,938,052) (2,000,555)
OPEB obligation (asset) — end of the year $ (3,247,287) $(2,938,052)

The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effect of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with a long-term
perspective of the calculations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date ~ June 30, 2013
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level Dollar, 30 year open amortization
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 6.0%
Healthcare cost trend rate (medical) 10.0% (initial)
5.0% (ultimate)
Healthcare cost trend rate (dental) 4.0% (initial)
4.0% (ultimate)
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE F: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - CONTINUED

Trend Information:

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation (asset) for the past four years is as follows:

Annual Required Percentage of Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual Contribution Annual OPEB Percentage of Obligation
Ended OPEB Cost (ARC) Cost Contributed  ARC Contributed (Asset)
June 30,2010 $ 994942 $ 996,984 207.7% 207.3% $ (901,239)
June 30, 2011 928,101 920,407 218.4% 220.3% (2,000,555)
June 30, 2012 925,658 908,580 201.3% 205.1% (2,938,052)
June 30, 2013 690,025 664,944 144.8% 150.3% (3,247,287)

Funded Status:

The funded status of the plan for the past four years is shown below.

UAAL as
Actuarial Unfunded a % of
Fiscal Year Valuation Accrued Actuarial Funded Covered Covered
Ended Assets Liability Accrued Liability  Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30, 2010 $1,250,000 $ 9,238,644 $ 7,988,644 13.5%  $23,088,470 34.60%
June 30, 2011 2,920,488 9,343,150 6,422,662 31.3% 23,609,312 27.20%
June 30,2012 3,891,684 9,188,265 5,296,581 42.4% 22,246,471 23.81%
June 30, 2013 4,540,406 6,980,733 2,440,327 65.0% 21,664,596 11.26%

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that
point. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future.

An irrevocable trust, the MPTC Post-Employment Benefits Trust, was created in June 2010 to begin funding this
liability. During 2012-13 the College transferred $200,000 into the trust. Total net position held in the trust at
June 30, 2013 was $4,540,406. A separate audited post-employment benefit plan report has not been
prepared.
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June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE G: RISK MANAGEMENT

Self Insurance

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to employee health, dental, and vision-care, for which the
District is self-insured. The accrued liability for insurance claims represents an estimate of the eventual loss on
claims arising prior to year end, including claims incurred but not yet reported. It is based on the requirements
of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the
issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of
the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The amount of the liability is
estimated by the District’s third party administrator based on prior experience and actual claims submitted
subsequent to year end. Changes in the claims liability for the 2012-13 and 2011-12 fiscal years were:

2013 2012
Accrued claims - beginning of year $ 940,974 $ 386,724
Current year claims and changes in estimate 5,056,309 7,124,161
Claim payments (5,541,614) (6,569,911)
Accrued claims — end of year $ 455,669 $ 940,974

Districts Mutual Insurance Company

In July 2004 all sixteen WTCS technical colleges created Districts Mutual Insurance Company (DMI). DMl is a
fully-assessable mutual company authorized under Wisconsin statute 611 to provide property, casuaity, and
liability insurance and risk management services to its members. The scope of insurance protection provided by
DMl is broad, covering property at $350,000,000 per occurrence; general liability, auto, and educators’ legal
liability at $5,000,000 per occurrence; and workers’ compensation at the statutorily required limits.

At this time, settled claims have not approached the coverage limits as identified above. The District's exposure
in its layer of insurance is limited to between $2,500 and $100,000 per occurrence depending on the type of
coverage; DMI purchases reinsurance for losses in excess of its retained layer of coverage.

DMI operations are governed by a five-member board of directors. Member colieges do not exercise any
control over the activities of DMI beyond election of the board of directors at the annual meeting. The board has
the authority to adopt a budget, set policy, and contro! the financial affairs of the company.

During 2004-2008, all member colleges were assessed an annual premium that included a capitalization
component to establish reserves for the company. Since inception, members have provided capital
contributions of $4,484,665. Future premiums will be based on relevant rating exposure bases as well as the
historical loss experience by members. DMI's ongoing operational expenses, other than loss adjustment
expenses, are allocated to participants based on equity interest in the company.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the District paid a total premium of $286,046, which included no
capitalization component. For 2012 total premiums were $266,417 which included no capitalization component.

Audited financial statements for DMI can be obtained from Districts Mutual Insurance Company,
212 W. Pinehurst Trail, Dakota Dunes, SD 57049.
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NOTE G: RISK MANAGEMENT — CONTINUED

Supplemental Insurance

In July 1997, the WTCS technical colleges formed the WTCS Insurance Trust to jointly purchase commercial
insurance to provide coverage for losses from theft of, damages to, or destruction of assets. The trust is
organized under Wisconsin Statutes 66.0301 and is governed by a board of trustees consisting of one trustee
from each member college. Members include all sixteen Wisconsin Technical College System districts.

The WTCS Insurance Trust has purchased the following levels of coverage from DMI for its participating
members:

e Foreign liability: $1,000,000 aggregate general; $1,000,000 auto per accident; $1,000,000 employee
benefits; includes benefit for accidental death and dismemberment, repatriation, and medical expenses;
$1,000 deductible for employee benefits.

e Crime: $750,000 coverage for employee dishonesty, forgery, computer fraud and funds transfer fraud,
$500,000 coverage for theft, robbery, burglary, disappearance and destruction of money and securities;
$25,000 coverage for investigation expenses; $2,500 deductible for investigation; $10,000 deductible for
employee dishonesty, forgery, and fraud.

The WTCS Insurance Trust statements can be obtained through Lakeshore Technical College District, 1290
North Avenue, Cleveland, WI 53015.

NOTE H: JOINT VENTURE

The District has implemented a computerized library database through a joint venture with Gateway and
Waukesha County (WCTC) Technical Colleges by forming the Wisconsin Public Access Library System
(WisPALS) in the fall of 1989. Since 1997 and as of June 30, 2013, eight additional technical colleges have
joined. WisPALS is governed by the eleven colleges’ presidents and librarians with each college having an
equal vote. Through the joint venture each college owns one-eleventh of the computer hardware and software
that comprises WisPALS; however, the computer hardware and software is permanently housed at WCTC's
Pewaukee campus.

The District's share of the operating costs was $65,861 and $54,399 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The fund balance for the joint venture increased $8,361 in the current year. WisPALS has
no joint venture debt outstanding.

The WisPALS financial statements can be obtained through Gateway Technical College District, 3520 30th
Avenue, Racine, WI 53144.

NOTE |: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Intergovernmental awards received by the District are subject to audit and adjustment by the funding agency or
their representatives. If grant revenues are received for expenditures which are subsequently disallowed, the
District may be required to repay the revenues to the funding agency. In the opinion of management, liabilities
resulting from such disallowed expenditures, if any, will not be material to the accompanying financial
statements at June 30, 2013.

The District has commitments for capital projects as of June 30, 2013 totaling $2,384,108. As of June 30, 2012,
the commitments for capital projects were $1,276,932.
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NOTE [ COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - CONTINUED

The District has operating leases which are year-to-year agreements for instructional facilities and equipment.
Rent expense under all operating leases for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $82,003 and
$49,959, respectively.

In March, 2013, the District entered into an operational lease with Delaney Group, LLC to lease a portion of a
building for a new Jackson Regional Center. For the first four months, leasehold improvements were made to
the building and lease payments began July 1, 2013. The base term of the lease extends for five years with five
additional one-year optional extensions. The base rent for years one and two is $38,944 annually and increases
2% annually thereafter. Additionally, the District will pay actual costs related to real estate taxes and common
area maintenance costs estimated at approximately $15,600 annually.

NOTE J: EXPENSE CLASSIFICATION

Expenses on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position are classified by function.
Alternatively, the expenses could also be shown by type of expense as follows for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012:

2013 2012

Salaries and wages $ 26,307,633 $ 26,025,400
Fringe benefits 9,764,229 11,753,672
Travel, memberships, and subscriptions 571,633 630,340
Supplies 6,037,413 4,952 460
Contracted services 8,569,419 7,879,784
Rentals — facilities and equipment 81,953 49,959
Credit 183,457 187,413
Insurance 348,241 396,537
Utilities 856,178 842,859
Depreciation 2,305,394 2,230,649
Student aid 7,948,743 8,598,564
Other expenses 90,202 78,358

Total operating expenses $ 63,064,495 $ 63,625,995

NOTE K: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 14, 2013, the Board of Directors authorized the issuance of $3,975,000 in general obligation
promissory notes for the purpose of financing building remodeling and improvement projects and the acquisition
of moveable equipment. The notes were issued October 10, 2013.

NOTE L: CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

The District has adopted GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which
requires debt issuance costs to be expensed in the period incurred, rather than recorded as assets and
amortized over the life of the related debt issue. Financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012, have
not been restated. The cumulative effect of this change was to decrease the June 30, 2013 net position of the
District by $188,135.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Unfunded
Actuarial Q)] 2) Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a % of
Valuation Date  Actuarial Value Actuarial Accrued  Liability (UAAL) Funded Ratio (3) Covered Payroll
June 30, of Assets Liability (AAL) 2-1) (1/2) Covered Payroll (2-1)/3)
2009 $ - $ 9828010 $ 9,828,010 0.00% (a) -
2010 1,250,000 9,238,644 7,988,644 13.53% 23,088,470 34.60%
2011 2,920,488 9,343,150 6,422,662 31.26% 23,609,312 27.20%
2012 3,891,684 9,188,265 5,296,581 42.36% 22,246,471 23.81%
2013 4,540,406 6,980,733 2,440,327 65.04% 21,664,596 11.26%

(a) Information not available.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.

58



MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

For the year ended June 30, 2013

Year Ended Employer Annual Required Percentage

June 30, Contributions Contribution (ARC) Contributed
2009 $ 1,011,349 $ 1,182,157 85.6%
2010 2,066,989 996,984 207.3%
2011 2,027,417 920,407 220.3%
2012 1,863,155 908,580 205.1%
2013 999,260 664,944 150.3%

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the year ended June 30, 2013

NOTE A: GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD STATEMENT NO. 45

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” for the year ended June 30, 2009.
Information for prior years is not available.

NOTE B: SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

The decrease in the Actuarial Accrued Liability between the 2012 and 2013 actuarial valuations is
due to changes in benefit terms including increases in deductibles and employee contributions
towards benefits.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the operating fund of the District. It is used to
account for all financial resources, except those accounted for in another
fund.




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Adjustment Actualon a
Original Amended to Budgetary Budgetary
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis Variance
Revenues
Local government - tax levy $ 29,777,317 § 29,767,317 $ 29,799,248 $ - $ 29,799,248 $ 31,931
Intergovernmental revenue
State 2,825,508 2,925,500 3,131,488 - 3,131,488 205,988
Federal 2,500 20,000 21,534 - 21,534 1,534
Tuition and fees
Statutory program fees 8,394,350 8,240,000 7,938,565 - 7,938,565 (301,435)
Material fees 455,000 455,000 446,385 - 446,385 (8,615)
Other student fees 1,089,325 1,058,900 989,739 - 989,739 (69,161)
Institutional 3,405,200 3,222,208 3,591,504 - 3,591,504 369,296
Total revenues 45,949,200 45,688,925 45,918,463 - 45,918,463 229,538
Expenditures
Instruction 24,741,914 24,482,991 24,425113 759 24,425,872 57,119
Instructional resources 2,132,822 2,135,795 1,854,850 - 1,854,850 280,945
Student services 5,662,840 5,425,267 5,217,870 28,300 5,246,170 179,097
General institutional 11,647,214 11,783,544 11,214,559 (119,413) 11,095,146 688,398
Physical plant 3,114,410 3,111,328 3,091,766 (600) 3,091,166 20,162
Total expenditures 47,199,200 46,938,925 45,804,158 (90,954) 45,713,204 1,225,721
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,250,000) (1,250,000) 114,305 90,954 205,259 1,455,259
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) 250,000 (500,000) (500,000) - {500,000)- -
Net change in fund balance (1,000,000) (1,750,000) (385,695) 90,954 (294,741) 1,455,259
Fund balance at July 1, 2012 15,220,240 15,641,295 15,798,232 (156,937) 15,641,295 -
Fund balance at June 30, 2013 $ 14220240 $ 13,891,295 $ 15412537 $ (65,983) $ 15,346,554 $§ 1,455,259
Fund balance
Reserved for encumbrances $ 65,983
Reserved for prepaid items 422,256
Unreserved fund balance
Designated for state aid fluctuations 282,000
Designated for operations 14,642,298
$ 15,412,537
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SPECIAL REVENUE AIDABLE FUND

The Special Revenue Aidable Fund is used to account for the proceeds
and related financial activities of specific revenue sources (other than debt
service, major capital projects, or expendable trusts) that are restricted to
expenditures for designated purposes because of legal or regulatory
provisions.




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE AIDABLE FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Adjustment Actual on a
Original Amended to Budgetary Budgetary
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis Variance
Revenues
Local government - tax levy $ 370,000 $ 370,000 $ 370,000 $ - % 370,000 $ -
Intergovernmental revenue
State 706,542 1,106,403 1,020,520 - 1,020,520 (85,883)
Federal 1,024,192 1,112,960 1,181,987 - 1,181,987 69,027
Institutional - 254,440 226,292 - 226,292 (28,148)
Total revenues 2,100,734 2,843,803 2,798,799 - 2,798,799 (45,004)
Expenditures
Instruction 1,233,368 1,680,545 1,680,545 - 1,680,545 -
Student services 1,012,107 1,055,911 1,055,654 - 1,055,654 257
General institutional 96,400 95,038 75,753 - 75,753 19,285
Physical plant 9,775 9,775 3,775 - 3,775 6,000
Total expenditures 2,351,650 2,841,269 2,815,727 - 2,815,727 25,542
Net change in fund balance (250,916) 2,534 (16,928) - (16,928) (19,462)
Fund balance at July 1, 2012 524,254 465,870 465,870 - 465,870 -
Fund balance at June 30, 2013 $ 273,338 § 468,404 $ 448,942  § - 8 448942 § (19,462)

Fund balance

Reserved for prepaid items $ 1,300
Unreserved fund balance

Designated for subsequent year 447,642

$ 448,942
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SPECIAL REVENUE NON-AIDABLE FUND

The Special Revenue Non-Aidable Fund is used to account for
expendable trust funds held by the District in a trustee/agent capacity,
primarily for student activities and financial aid.




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE NON-AIDABLE FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenue
State
Federal
- Institutional
Total revenues

Expenditures
Student services

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at July 1, 2012

Fund balance at June 30, 2013

Fund balance
Reserved for student financiat assistance

Adjustment Actual on a
Original Amended to Budgetary Budgetary
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis Variance
$ 672,300 $ 672,300 $ 818,207 $ 818,207 § 145,907
13,045,250 13,045,250 11,582,494 11,582,494 (1,462,756)
308,000 308,000 350,859 350,859 42,859
14,025,550 14,025,550 12,751,560 12,751,560 (1,273,990)
14,045,575 14,045,575 12,787,776 12,787,776 1,257,799
(20,025) (20,025) (36,216) (36,216) (16,191)
89,950 84,652 84,652 84,652 -
$ 69,925 § 64,627 § 48,436 $ 48,436 § (16,191)
$ 48436
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and major
equipment other than those financed by the Enterprise and Internal
Service funds.




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Adjustment Actualon a
Original Amended to Budgetary Budgetary
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis Variance
Revenues
Intergovernmental revenue
State $ 58,520 § 30,420 $ 45634 $ - 8 45634 $ 15,214
Federal 17,760 61,279 64,886 - 64,886 3,607
Institutional 25,000 99,000 141,568 - 141,568 42,568
Total revenues 101,280 190,699 252,088 - 252,088 61,389
Expenditures
Instruction 1,624,627 2,425,846 2,066,711 359,135 2,425,846 -
Instructional resources 477,475 360,000 343,628 12,281 355,909 4,091
Student services 37,200 89,582 76,548 13,034 89,582 -
General institutional 1,205,784 898,000 942,323 (44,445) 897,878 122
Physical ptant 2,990,888 3,463,201 2,696,030 767,171 3,463,201 -
Total expenditures 6,335,974 7,236,629 6,125,240 1,107,176 7,232,416 4,213
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (6,234,694) (7,045,930) (5,873,152) (1,107,176) (6,980,328) 65,602
Other financing sources
Long term debt issued 5,900,000 5,900,000 5,900,000 - 5,900,000 -
Net change in fund balance (334,694) (1,145,930) 26,848 (1,107,176) (1,080,328) 65,602
Fund balance at July 1, 2012 1,879,235 2,009,204 3,286,136 (1,276,932) 2,009,204 -
Fund balance at June 30, 2013 $ 1,544,541 $ 863,274 $ 3,312,984 $ (2,384,108) § 028,876 $ 65,602

Fund balance

Reserved for encumbrances $ 2,384,108
Reserved for prepaid items 118,014
Reserved for capital projects 810,862

$ 3,312,984

64



DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources and the payment of principal and interest on long-term general
obligation debt.




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

DEBT SERVICE FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For the year ended June 30, 2013

Adjustment Actual on a
Original Amended to Budgetary Budgetary
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis Variance
Revenues
Local government - tax levy $ 6,000,000 $ 6,000,000 6,295833 $ (295,833) 6,000,000 -
Institutional 25,000 25,000 6,130 - 6,130 (18,870)
Total revenues 6,025,000 6,025,000 6,301,963 (295,833) 6,006,130 (18,870)
Expenditures
Physical plant 5,995,117 6,736,438 6,736,438 - 6,736,438 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 29,883 (711,438) (434,475) (295,833) (730,308) (18,870)
Other financing sources
Transfers in - 500,000 500,000 - 500,000 -
Long term debt issued - 955,000 955,000 - 955,000 -
Total other financing sources - 1,455,000 1,455,000 - 1,455,000 -
Net change in fund balance 29,883 743,562 1,020,525 (295,833) 724,692 (18,870)
Fund balance at July 1, 2012 717,142 703,334 407,501 295,833 703,334 -
Fund balance at June 30, 2013 $ 747,025 $ 1,446,896 1,428,026 3 - 1,428,026 (18,870)
Fund balance
Reserved for debt refinancing 955,000
Reserved for debt service 473,026
1,428,026
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that provide
services which are financed primarily by user charges or activities where
periodic measurement of net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, or other purposes. The
District's enterprise funds are used to account for the operations of the
bookstore, vending machines, parts department, and other activities.




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
ENTERPRISE FUNDS SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN NET POSITION - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Adjustment Actualon a
Original Amended to Budgetary Budgetary
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis Variance
Revenues
Auxiliary revenue $ 2672100 $ 2,672,100 $ 2412418 $ - $ 2412418 § (259,682)
Expenditures
Auxiliary services 2,691,496 2,691,496 2,445,885 - 2,445,885 245,611
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (19,3986) (19,396) (33,467) - (33,467) (14,071)
Other financing uses
Transfers out (250,000) (250,000) - - - 250,000
Net change in position (269,396) (269,396) (33,467) - (33,467) 235,929
Net position at July 1, 2012 890,791 967,278 967,278 - 967,278
Net position at June 30, 2013 $ 621,395 $ 697,882 § 933811  $ - 8 933811 § 235,929

Net position
Unrestricted $ 933,811
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods
or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or
agencies of the District on a cost reimbursement basis. At present, the
District has two Internal Service Funds. One is used to account for the
transactions of the District's self-insured employee health, dental, and
vision coverage programs. The other accounts for all costs associated
with copiers and usage by District departments.




MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN NET POSITION - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Adjustment Actualon a
Original Amended to Budgetary Budgetary
Budget Budget Actual Basis Basis Variance
Revenues
Auxiliary revenue $ 6990400 $ 6,990,400 $ 6,792,985 $ - $ 6792985 $ (197,415)
Expenditures
Auxiliary services 7,923,565 7,923,565 6,262,028 - 6,262,028 1,661,537
Net change in position (933,165) (933,165) 530,957 - 530,957 1,464,122
Net position at July 1, 2012 6,368,296 4,899,211 4,899,211 - 4,899,211
Net position at June 30, 2013 $ 5435131 $ 3,966046 $ 5430,188 $ - $ 5430,168 $ 1,464,122

Net position
Unrestricted $ 5,430,168
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE TO RECONCILE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY) BASIS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended June 30, 2013

Revenues
Local government - tax levy
Intergovernmental revenue
State
Federal
Tuition and fees
Statutory program fees
Material fees
Other student fees
Institutional
Auxiliary revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Instruction
Instructional resources
Student services
General institutional
Physical plant
Auxiliary services
Depreciation
Student aid

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out)
Long term debt issued
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance/net position
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Fund balance/net position at July 1, 2012

Fund balance/net position at June 30, 2013

Special Special
Revenue Revenue Capital
General Aidable Non-Aidable Projects
Fund Fund Fund Fund
29,799,248 370,000 $ - 8 -
3,131,488 1,020,520 818,207 45,634
21,534 1,181,987 11,582,494 64,886
7,938,565 - - -
446,385 - - -
989,739 - - -
3,591,504 226,292 350,859 141,568
45,918,463 2,798,799 12,751,560 252,088
24,425 872 1,680,545 - 2,425,846
1,854,850 - - 355,909
5,246,170 1,055,654 12,787,776 89,582
11,095,146 75,753 - 897,878
3,091,166 3,775 - 3,463,201
45,713,204 2,815,727 12,787,776 7,232,416
205,259 (16,928) (36,216) (6,980,328)
(500,000) - - -
- - - 5,900,000
(500,000) - - 5,900,000
(294,741) (16,928) (36,218) (1,080,328)
15,641,295 465,870 84,652 2,009,204
15,346,554 448,942 $ 48436 § 928,876
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Statement

of revenues,
Debt Internal expenses, and
Service Enterprise Service Reconciling changes in
Fund Funds Funds Total ltems net position
$ 6,000,000 § - - 36,169,248 § 295833 $ 36,465,081
- - - 5,015,849 - 5,015,849 (1)
- - - 12,850,901 - 12,850,901 (2
- - - 7,938,565 (4,097,735) 3,840,830
- - - 446,385 (230,415) 215,970
- - - 989,739 (510,884) 478,855
6,130 - - 4,316,353 (237,785) 4,078,568 (3)
- 2,412,418 6,792,985 9,205,403 (6,792,985) 2,412,418
6,006,130 2,412,418 6,792,985 76,932,443 (11,573,971) 65,358,472
- - - 28,532,263 (1,858,757) 26,673,506
- - - 2,210,759 (234,645) 1,976,114
- - - 19,179,182 (12,986,911) 6,192,271
- - - 12,068,777 (791,968) 11,276,809
6,736,438 - - 13,294,580 (8,443,242) 4,851,338 (4)
- 2,445,885 6,262,028 8,707,913 (6,268,526) 2,439,387
- - - - 2,305,394 2,305,394
- - - - 7,948,743 7,948,743
6,736,438 2,445,885 6,262,028 83,993,474 (20,329,912) 63,663,562
(730,308) (33,467) 530,957 (7,061,031) 8,755,941 1,694,910
500,000 - - - - -
955,000 - - 6,855,000 (6,855,000) -
1,455,000 - - 6,855,000 (6,855,000) -
724,692 (33,467) 530,957 (206,031) 1,900,941 1,694,910
- - - - (188,135) (188,135)
703,334 967,278 4,899,211 24,770,844 24,437,107 49,207,951
$ 1,428026 § 933,811 5,430,168 24564813 $ 26,338,048 $ 50,714,726 (5)
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE TO RECONCILE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY) BASIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
For the year ended June 30, 2013

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The District's fund structure used in preparing the basic financial statements is different than the
fund structure used for budgetary accounting. Annual budgets are adopted for all funds in
accordance with the requirements of the Wisconsin Technical College System Board. The
District follows the procedures listed below in adopting annual budgets for all funds in accordance
with legal requirements.

¢ Annual budget requests by departments are submitted to the President’s Cabinet during
January. After all the requests are reviewed, the President submits the proposed budget to
the District Board.

e Public hearings are conducted on the proposed budget prior to District Board approval.

¢ In accordance with State Statute 38.12, the budget is legally enacted through approval by the
District Board prior to July 1.

¢ Budget amendments made during the year are legally authorized by the District Board.
Budget transfers (between funds and functional areas within funds) and changes in budgeted
revenues and expenditures (appropriations) require approval by a vote of two-thirds of the
entire membership of the District Board and public notice published in the District's official
newspaper within 10 days according to Wisconsin Statutes.

o Management exercises control over budgeted expenditures by fund and function (e.g.,
instruction, instructional resources, student services, etc.), as presented in the accompanying
financial statements. Expenditures may not exceed funds available or appropriated. Unused
appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a planning device for all funds. MPTC adopts an
annual operating budget that is prepared on a different basis from the basic financial statements.
The budget differs from GAAP by recognizing encumbrances as expenditures and property taxes
levied that relate to debt service funding for the subsequent year as revenue. Also, the budget
does not incorporate changes related to GASB Statement Nos. 34, 35, 37, and 38 as listed
previously in Note A to the financial statements.

4] State grants revenue is bresented on the basic financial statements as follows:
Operating $ 1,946,266
Non-operating
State operating appropriations 3,023,949
Capital contributions (state portion) 45,634
$§ 5.015,849
(2) Federal grants revenue is presented on the basic financial statements as follows:
Operating $ 12,786,015
Capital contributions (federal portion) 64,886*
$ 12,850,901

* Shown as one line item totaling $110,520 on basic financial statements.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE TO RECONCILE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY) BASIS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
For the year ended June 30, 2013

(3) Institutional revenue is reported as four separate line items on the basic financial
statements:
Contract revenue $ 3,247,325
Miscellaneous 983,655
Loss on disposal of capital assets (241,381)
Investment income earned 88,969
$ 4,078,568
(4) Interest expense is reported as a component of physical plant on the budgetary
statements:
Physical plant $ 4,252,271
Interest expense 599,067
$ 4851338
(56) Reconciliation of budgetary basis fund balance and net position as presented in the basic

financial statements:

Budgetary basis fund balance/net position $ 24,564,813
General capital assets capitalized — cost 77,853,605
Accumulated depreciation on general capital assets (33,981,395)
General obligation notes payable (23,295,000)
Accrued interest on notes payable (124,675)
Long-term OPEB asset 3,247,287
Encumbrances outstanding at year end 2,450,091

Net position per basic financial statements $ 50,714,726
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STATISTICAL SECTION



The statistical section of the District's comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information
in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the District’'s overall financial health. The information was
prepared by the District and was not subject to audit by the independent certified
public accounting firm.

The statistical section contains information related to the following categories:

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the District’s financial performance and well-being have changed.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to aid the reader in assessing the
District’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the
District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the District's financial
activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the District’s financial report
relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT STATISTICS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Student Enrollment (1)

Year Ended Associate Technical  Vocational Community  Non-Post Unduplicated
June 30, Degree Diploma Adult Service Secondary Total Total
2004 31,115 8,652 14,217 49 8,325 62,358 22,756
2005 31,207 8,124 13,289 59 7,915 60,594 21,500
2006 32,032 8,153 13,331 29 7,728 61,273 22,305
2007 28,053 7,785 13,132 6 7,687 56,663 20,516
2008 27,637 7,638 13,175 8 8,522 56,980 20,020
2009 29,102 7,885 12,167 49 8,361 57,564 18,490
2010 33,133 7,911 11,513 1,445 9,984 63,986 18,784
2011 32,459 7,135 10,930 1,325 9,163 61,012 18,712
2012 27,951 7,570 9,446 1,652 8,483 55,102 17,279
2013 27,172 7,131 7,989 2,279 9,797 54,368 16,223

Full-time Equivalents (2)

Year Ended Associate Technical  Vocational Community  Non-Post

June 30, Degree Diploma Adult Service Secondary Total
2004 2,166 695 135 - 265 3,261
2005 2,247 648 124 - 230 3,249
2006 2,245 665 125 - 228 3,263
2007 2,133 642 124 - 222 3,121
2008 2,086 634 130 - 244 3,094
2009 2,240 647 109 - 237 3,233
2010 2,620 642 108 9 269 3,648
2011 2,571 593 100 8 254 3,526
2012 2,205 609 84 7 233 3,138
2013 2,129 559 76 9 269 3,042

Notes:

(1) Student enrollment represents the duplicated count of citizens enrolled in District courses per the Student
Headcount Summary by Aid Category and Instructional Division (VE215572) report from the WTCS client
reporting system. The unduplicated total is per the Student Headcount Summary by Course Aid Category
(VE215512) report.

(2) Full-time equivalent data per the FTE Student Summary by Aid Category and Instructional Division (VE215570A)
report from the WTCS client reporting system. A full-time equivalent is basically equal to 30 annual student
credits based on a mathematical calculation which varies somewhat by program and which is subject to state
approval and audit of student and course data.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF PER CREDIT PROGRAM FEES CHARGED
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Post Secondary
Vocational Adult

Year Resident Out of State (1) Non-Aidable (2)
2003-04 $ 70.00 % 489.75 65.00
2004-05 76.00 488.10 65.00
2005-06 80.50 510.30 65.00
2006-07 87.00 536.30 65.00
2007-08 92.05 570.55 65.00
2008-09 97.05 497.20 80.00
2009-10 101.40 505.45 175.00
2010-11 106.00 53.00 180.00
2011-12 111.85 55.95 195.00
2012-13 116.90 58.45 202.00

Additional Per Credit Fees

Material Fees
Fees for instructional materials consumed by students and instructors are required by
$.38.24(1)(c), Wisconsin Statutes. These materials fees are to be charged to all students
on a uniform basis unless exempted by state statute, administrative code, or State Board
action. There are various fee categories ranging from $4.00 per credit to $300 per credit.
Courses are assigned to one of the material fee categories based on the amount of
instructional materials required for the course. The minimum fee that is to be charged for
any non-exempt enroliment is $4.00, regardless of the credit value.

Supplemental Fees
A supplemental fee is charged to all students enrolling in post secondary courses. This
fee supports Student Senate, clubs and associations, and the College Life department.
The fee was set at 5% of program fees for the 2012-13 academic year.

Notes:
(1) Out-of-state tuition excludes those students covered by reciprocal agreements.

(2) During 2009-10 the WTCS evaluated the utilization of professional development and
avocational courses, requiring that many courses be transitioned to the avocational category
which operates under different pricing regulations whereby fees are not set by the WTCS.
Previous to this time, Moraine Park had not run avocational courses in many years and had
not evaulated appropriate pricing until required by the State to transition courses and
price appropriately.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

Name of Entity (1)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Outstanding Debt

Calumet County
Coumbia County
Dodge County

Fond du Lac County
Green Lake County
Marquette County
Sheboygan County
Washington County
Waushara County
Winnebago County
Total Cities

Total Towns

Total Villages

Total School Districts
Total Sanitary Districts

Subtotal, overlapping debt
District Direct Debt

General Obligation Notes

General Obligation Bonds

Subtotal, District direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

2012 Equalized Valuation - TID In

Direct District Indebtedness

Percent Appliacble Applicable to
Net Debt Outstanding to District (2) District

$ 7,035,000 8.65% 608,528
22,720,000 0.10 22720
41,980,000 79.15 33,227,170
69,970,000 100 69,970,000
20,538,710 100 20,538,710
12,647,237 1.96 247,886
18,900,000 0.09 17,010
17,120,000 77.28 13,230,336
5,975,000 8.49 507,278
46,469,519 0.95 441,460
240,970,114 Varies 240,970,114
9,417,993 Varies 8,520,162
53,169,952 100 53,169,952
205,034,070 Varies 200,310,852
5,899,489 100 5,899,489
647,681,667
23,295,000
23,295,000
670,976,667

Statistical Summa

Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness

Total Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness
as a Percentage of Equalized Value

Population of District

Direct, Overlapping and Underlying Indebtedness - Per Capita

Source: R.W. Baird & Co.

Notes:

$ 24,291,662,363

23,295,000
647,681,667

$ 670,976,667

2.76%
301,626

$ 2,224.53

(1) Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses located within the District bourdaries. This process recognizes that, when considering
the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and
businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and
therefore responsible for the repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

(2) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the District is the equalized property value of the property of the
overlapping government located in the District as a percentage of total equalized value of all property for the
overlapping government.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

FULL TIME EMPLOYEES BY EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLASSIFICATION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05
Administrative/Managerial 47 50 43 42 37 38 39 41
Number of females 30 30 30 27 25 24 28 27
Percent females 63.83% 60.00% 69.77% 64.29% 67.57% 63.16% 71.79% 65.85%
Number of minorities 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1
Percent minorities 6.38% 6.00% 2.33% 2.38% 2.70% 2.63% 2.56% 2.44%
Faculty 141 144 144 145 142 143 140 139 136
Number of females 74 75 74 76 75 76 72 7 67
Percent females 52.48% 52.08% 51.39% 52.41% 52.80% 53.15% 50.71% 51.00% 49.26%
Number of minorities 3 4 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Percent minorities 2.13% 2.78% 4.17% 4.14% 4.22% 4.20% 4.29% 4.32% 4.41%
Professional/Noninstruction 46 39 41 38 37 41 40 49
Number of females 33 28 28 29 28 30 27 33
Percent females 71.74% 71.79% 68.29% 76.32% 75.68% 73.17% 67.50% 67.35%
Number of minorities 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3
Percent minorities 4.35% 7.14% 4.88% 5.26% 5.41% 4.88% 7.50% 6.12%
Secretarial/Clerical 68 103 106 102 103 97 95 102
Number of females 65 98 96 95 98 91 90 98
Percent females 95.59% 95.15% 90.57% 93.18% 95.15% 93.81% 94.74% 96.08%
Number of minorities 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 2
Percent minorities 1.47% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.97% 1.03% 1.05% 1.96%
Technical/Para-professional 43 16 18 12 10 12 12 13
Number of females 38 12 14 8 7 9 9 9
Percent females 88.37% 75.00% 77.78% 66.66% 70.00% 75.00% 75.00% 69.23%
Number of minorities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent minorities 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Skilled Trades 1 1 1 1 o] 0 0 [
Number of females 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent females 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Number of minorities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent minorities 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Service/Maintenance 21 23 28 26 27 26 26 27
Number of females 9 9 24 13 13 13 13 14
Percent females 42.86% 39.13% 85.71% 50.00% 48.15% 50.00% 50.00% 51.85%
Number of minorities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent minorities 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Library Technicians 3
Number of females 3
Percent females 100%
Number of minorities 1
Percent minorities 33%
Librarians 3
Number of females 0
Percent females 0
Number of minorities 1
Percent minorities 33%
Other Teachers & Instructional Support Staff 22
Number of females 17
Percent females 7%
Number of minorities 2
Percent minorities 9%
Management 36
Number of females 23
Percent females 64%

Number of minorities
Percent minorities

3%
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FULL TIME EMPLOYEES BY EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLASSIFICATION - CONTINUED
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business & Financial Operations
Number of females

Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

Computer, Engineering & Science
Number of females

Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

Community Service, Legal, Arts & Media
Number of females

Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

Service
Number of females
Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

Sales & Related
Number of females
Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

Office & Administrative Support
Number of females
Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

Natural Resources, Construction & Maintenance
Number of females

Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

Production. Transportation, and Materia! Moving

Number of females
Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

Total
Number of females
Percent females
Number of minorities
Percent minorities

MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

2008-09

2007-08

2006-07

2005-08

2004-05

13
1
85%
0
0%

19
6
32%
0
0%
11
55%
9%
18
56%

0%

100%

0%

101
92
91%

0%

0%

0%

1
0
0%
0
0%

377

246
65.25%
9
2.39%

370

250
67.57%

10
2.70%

378

251
66.40%

1
2.91%

382

268
70.16%
9
2.36%

363

247
68.04%
9
2.48%

Source: IPEDS report. Categories changed to match standard occupational classifications in 2013 from 7 to 13 categories.

89

357
247
69.19%
10
2.80%

354
239
67.51%
10
2.82%

351

238
67.78%

1
3.13%

368
248
67.39%
12
3.26%



MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURES PER FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) STUDENT
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Operational Expenditures (1) Student Enroliments Expenditures per FTE
Percent Percent Percent
Amount Increase Increase Increase
Year 000's (Decrease) FTE's (Decrease) Per FTE {Decrease)
2004 $ 35,542 3,261 $ 10,899
7.07% -0.37% 8.06%
2005 38,268 3,249 11,778
4,58 043 413
2006 40,020 3,263 12,265
3.73 (4.35) 8.45
2007 41,514 3,121 13,301
2.46 (0.87) 3.35
2008 42,534 3,094 13,747
: 2.46 4.49 3.16
2009 45,851 ‘3,233 14,182
7.65 12.84 (4.60)
2010 49,359 3,648 13,530
. 2.70 (3.34) 6.26
2011 50,692 3,526 14,377
(5.75) (11.00) 5.91
2012 47,779 3,138 15,226
1.57 (3.06) 477
2013 48,529 3,042 15,953

Notes:
(1) For the purposes of this compilation, operational expenditures is based on the budgetary expenditures from the
District's General and Special Revenue Aidable funds.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

PROGRAM GRADUATE FOLLOW-UP STATISTICS (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percent
Number of Number Employed in Percent Average

Number of Follow-up Available for Percent Related Employed Monthly
Year Graduates Respondents Employment Employed Qccupations in District Salary
2003 876 609 423 91.5% 78.6% 62.0% $ 2,529
2004 986 716 369 94.0 81.0 61.0 2,418
2005 1,091 764 469 92.0 83.3 62.0 2,511
20086 1,106 847 549 90.0 76.0 59.0 2,613
2007 1,163 904 532 93.0 81.0 56.0 2,930
2008 1,172 721 405 89.0 83.0 55.0 2,970
2009 986 644 453 83.0 78.5 50.0 3,041
2010 1,030 742 548 94.0 68.3 58.0 2,879
2011 1,080 781 573 89.0 74.0 57.0 2,864
2012 1,110 895 255 88.0 77.0 56.0 2,873
Notes:

(1) Schedule is based on a survey of MPTC graduates conducted approximately six months after graduation. Therefore,

2012-13 statistics are not available. Statistics include graduates of the District's postsecondary vocational-technical
programs. The data does not reflect the activities of students who complete only portions of their program.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the year ended June 30, 2013

NOTE A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on the accrual basis

of accounting.

NOTE B: RECONCILIATION OF FEDERAL REVENUE

A schedule reconciling total federal awards as reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards to the amounts as reported in the Basic Financial Statements follows:

Federal Total

Revenue Match Expenditures
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 12,850,901 $ 503,595 $ 13,354,496
Basic Financial Statements $ 12,850,901 (1 $ 503,595 $ 13,354,496

The District had no subrecipients for federal revenues during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

(1) Federal grant revenue is presented on the basic financial statements as follows:

Operating $12,786,015
Capital contributions (federal portion) 64,886

$ 12,850,901

NOTE C:. OVERSIGHT AGENCY

The U.S. Department of Education has been designated as the Federal oversight agency for the District.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

NOTE A: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards is prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting.

NOTE B: RECONCILIATION OF STATE REVENUE

A schedule reconciling total state awards as reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of
State Awards to the amounts as reported in the Basic Financial Statements follows:

State Total
Revenue Match Expenditures
Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards $ 5,015,849 $ 36,336,054 $ 41,351,903
Basic Financial Statements $ 5,015,849 (1) $ 36,336,054 $ 41,351,903

The District had no subrecipients for state revenues during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

(1) State grant revenue is presented on the basic financial statements as follows:

Operating $ 1,946,266
Non-operating
State operating appropriations 3,023,949

Capital contributions (state portion) 45634
_$ 5015849

NOTE C: OVERSIGHT AGENCY

The Wisconsin Technical College System Board has been designated as the state oversight agency for the District.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Basic Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
¢ Material weakness(es) identified? No
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified? No
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-1337? Yes
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the State Single Audit Guidelines? No
Identification of major federal and state programs:
[  CFDANumber | Name of Federal Programs or Cluster
Student Financial Aid Program Cluster
84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants
84.033 Federal College Work Study Program
84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program
84.268 Federal Direct Loans
[ State ID Number | Name of State Programs ]
235.102 Wisconsin Higher Education Grant
292.105 State Aids for Vocational, Technical and Adult Education
292,161 Increase Program Capacity Grants
Audit threshold used to determine between A and Type B programs:
Federal $300,000
State $100,000
Audit qualified as a low-risk auditee Yes
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section Il - Basic Financial Statement Findings as Required by Government Auditing Standards

Finding
Number

Internal Control Finding

There were no findings required to be reported in accordance with generally accepted
governmental auditing standards.

Section lll - Federal Award and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding

Number OMB Circular A-133 Findings

2013-01 Special Tests and Provisions — Enroliment Reporting
Direct Loan Program (CFDA No. 84.268)
U.S. Department of Education

Criteria: 34 CFR 685.309 requires that unless the institution expects to submit its next student

status confirmation report within 60 days, the institution is required to notify the iender or
the guaranty agency within 30 days, if it discovers that a student who received a loan
either did not enroll or ceased to be enrolled on at least a half-time basis.

Condition: For two of the students in our sample population, the institution discovered that the
student enroliment status had changed, but failed to report the change in enroliment
status in a timely manner.

Effect: We noted that both student status changes were subsequently reported; therefore, there

Questioned Costs:

Cause:

are no questioned costs calculated or reported.
Not able to determine.
The Registrar's Office is responsible for identifying and reporting changes in student

status on a timely basis. The Registrar’s Office did update and report the changes in
enrollment status, but the changes were not reported timely.

Recommendation: We recommend that the Registrar's Office review procedures for identifying and
reporting changes in student status and verify that procedures are properly designed and
implemented to ensure that all enroliment reporting requirements are met.

Finding Questioned
Number State Single Audit Guidelines Findings Costs

There were no findings required to be reported in accordance with the State Single Audit

Guidelines.
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section IV - Other Issues

Does the auditors’ report or the notes to the financial statements include disclosure with regard
to substantial doubt as to the auditee’s ability to continue as a going concern? No

Does the audit report show audit issues (i.e. material non-compliance, non-material non-
compliance, questioned costs, material weakness, reportable condition, management letter
comment, excess revenue or excess reserve) related to grants/contracts with funding
agencies that require audits to be in accordance with the State Single Audit Guidelines?

Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction No
Wisconsin Technical College System Board No
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources No
Wisconsin Department of Transportation No
Wisconsin Higher Education Aids Board No
Wisconsin Department of Revenue No

Was a Management Letter or other document conveying audit comments issued as a result

of this audit? / Yes
Name and signature of Shareholder WM

David L. Maccoux, CPA

Date of report November 27, 2013
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MORAINE PARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE DISTRICT
Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings

Finding Number Corrective Action Plan

2013-01 Special Tests and Provisions - Enrollment Reporting

Moraine Park Technical College updated the procedure for submission of graduate
information to the National Student Clearinghouse to meet compliance requirements.
The data was previously submitted once per semester, but the report will now be
generated and submitted monthly by the Registrar. The new procedure was tested
and placed into production December, 2013.
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CPAs AND SO MUCH MORE.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the District Board
Moraine Park Technical College District
Fond du Lac, Wisconsin

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Moraine Park Technical College District,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Moraine Park Technical College District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon which included an emphasis of matter paragraph as indicated on page 18 dated November 27, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Moraine Park Technical
College District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Moraine Park Technical College District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Moraine Park Technical
College District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Moraine Park Technical College District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Moraine Park Technical College
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Moraine Park Technical College District's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ool 5

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
November 27, 2013
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CPAs AND SO MUCH MORE.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT GUIDELINES

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the District Board
Moraine Park Technical College District
Fond du Lac, Wisconsin

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Moraine Park Technical College District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the
State Single Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Moraine Park Technical College District's major federal and state programs for the year
ended June 30, 2013. Moraine Park Technical College District's major federal and state programs are identified in
the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Moraine Park Technical College District's
major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin
Department of Administration. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Moraine Park Technical
College District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and
state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Moraine Park Technical College
District's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, Moraine Park Technical College District complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be reported
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2013-01.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Moraine Park Technical College District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Moraine Park Technical College District's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal or
state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal or state program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Moraine Park Technical College District’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133
and the State Single Audit Guidelines. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

/Mfa

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
November 27, 2013
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Beaver Dam

700 Gould Street

Beaver Dam, WI 53916-1994
920-887-1101

Fond du Lac

235 North National Avenue
PO Box 1940

Fond du Lac, Wl 54936-1940
920-922-8611

Toll-Free 1-800-472-4554

West Bend

2151 North Main Street
West Bend, WI 53090-1598
262-334-3413

Moraine Park Technical College does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability or age in employment, admissions or its programs or activities. The following person has been designated to handle inquiries
regarding the College’s nondiscrimination policies: Equal Opportunity Officer, Moraine Park Technical College, 235 North National Avenue, PO Box 1940, Fond du Lac, WI 54936-1940, 920-924-6459 or 920-924-3232.





